
 

 

1902 - Serving Our Community for over 120 Years - 2024 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2024 AT 7:00 P.M.  
RONALD W. SHEPHERD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 

 500 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025 

 
Board Members General Manager 
Fran Dehn, President Sergio Ramirez  
David Walker, Secretary  
Roy Thiele-Sardiña, Treasurer District General Counsel 
Edward P. Moritz, Member Anthony Condotti, Esq. 
George Otte, Member 
 
  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS 
To participate by telephone or Zoom meeting, public comments can be made by joining Zoom 
meeting at:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82066722969?pwd=vfZdyby2MYfc4LWh0r9xwZpHt3X7bI.1 
Meeting ID: 820 6672 2969 Passcode: 090372 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2.    Communications from the Public 
 
3. Consent Calendar 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. The 
motion, seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded accordingly. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless specifically requested by a member 
of the Board.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting November 13, 2024 Pg. 3A-1 

B. Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 
1616 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities at 104 Constitutional Drive (Menlo 
Portal, old addresses 110 Constitution Drive and 115 Independence Drive), Menlo Park, 
California Pg. 3B-1 

C. Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permits No. 
1617 and 1619 for the Sewer Improvements for Menlo Uptown at 141 Jefferson Drive and 
180 & 186 Constitution Drive, Menlo Park, California Pg. 3C-1 

D. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Issue Class 3 Permit 24-198 for 6-inch 
Sewer Main Replacement at 811 Bay Road, Menlo Park, California Pg. 3D-1 

E. Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 
24-198 for Proposed Sewer Easement for 811 Bay Road, Menlo Park, California Pg. 3E-1 

F. Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to Class 5 Sewer Permit No. 
18033 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 35 Possum Lane, Portola Valley, 
California Pg. 3F-1 



 

 

G. Consider Accepting Wastewater Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit 
No. 18032 for the Construction of Force Main Extension, and Class 5 Permit No. 18033 for 
the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 35 Possum Lane, Portola Valley, California 
Pg. 3G-1 

 
4. General Manager’s Report Pg. 4-1 
 

5. Consider Approving Resolution Adopting FY 2024-25 Updated Budget Pg. 5-1 
 

6. Consider Approving FY 2023-24 Financial Statements, Ending June 30, 2024 Pg. 6-1 
 

7. Report and Discussion on Finance Committee Pg. 7-1 
 

8. Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility Pg. 8-1 
 

9.    Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update Pg. 9-1 
 

 10.  Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA)  
       including the Solid Waste Franchise Re-Assignment Pg. 10-1 

 
11.   Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Plant Pg. 11-1 
 
12.   Closed Session 
 
             A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
          Title: Finance Manager 
 

13.    Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be Placed on  
        Future Agenda  
         

14.    Adjournment 
 
The West Bay Sanitary District does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda and agenda packet can be provided in a 
format to accommodate special needs. If you require a copy of the agenda or related materials in an alternative format to accommodate a disability, or if you 
wish to attend this public meeting and will require special assistance or other special equipment, please call the District at (650) 321-0384 at least five days 
in advance and we will make every reasonable attempt to provide such an accommodation. 



1902 - Serving Our Community for over 120 Years - 2024 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2024 AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
President Dehn called the meeting to order at   7:02 PM 

 
Roll Call        

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: President Dehn, Secretary Walker, Treasurer Thiele- 

Sardiña, Director Moritz, Director Otte 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None  
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Ramirez, Heydari AND Condotti by Zoom 

 Others Present:   None 
 
2. Communications from the Public: None. 
 
3. Consent Calendar 
 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. 
The motion, seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded 
accordingly. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless specifically 
requested by a member of the Board.  

A.    Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting October 23, 2024  
B.     Approval of the Financial Activity Report Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills and Salary 

and Consideration of Other Financial Matters through October 31, 2024 
C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – October 2024 
D. Town of Los Altos Hills - Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – October 2024 
E. Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by WBSD – 

October 2024 
F. City of East Palo Alto/East Palo Alto Sanitary District Operations and Maintenance 
Report for Work Performed by WBSD – October 2024 

 
 Comments: None.  

 Motion to Approve by:  Moritz      2nd  by:   Otte  Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain: 0 
 
4.    General Manager’s Report 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported on responding to an EPASD 
spill due to a collapsed pipe and the repair of the damaged pipe. He also reported the 
District has auctioned six vehicles which earned a total of approximately $114k. He 
continued to report that onboarding for the four new maintenance workers is underway. He 
reported the District received the first NFWF reimbursement for $739k. Next regular 
meetings are scheduled for December 11th and 18th with special board meeting on 
December 4th. The complete General Manager’s written report is in the November 18th, 
2024, agenda packet. 
 

3A-1



 

5. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a No-Cost Change Order (CCO 
#2) with Casey Construction, Inc. to incorporate the Davis-Bacon Act Terms and 
Conditions and Federal Wage Determination in the Contract Documents for Avy-
Altschul Pump Station Project No. 1761.7 
 
Motion to Approve by:  Moritz     2nd  by:  Walker   Vote:   AYE: 5   NAY: 0   Abstain:  0 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the item is a requirement by the 
State’s SRF program.  
 

6. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 1    
(CCO #1) in the amount of $48,843.07 with Anderson Pacific Engineering 
Construction, Inc. for the Design- Build Agreement – Phase 1 for Site Demolition and 
Preparation Work 

 
Motion to Approve by:  Walker     2nd  by:   Moritz   Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain: 0 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the change order is to move the 
conduit for the new headworks and odor control system. The change order cost is 
$48,843.07 while the new odor control system savings will be approximately $500k. 
 

7. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Entitlement Transfer 
Agreement with MP Oak Gardens Associates, L.P. (“MidPen”) and the U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs (“VA”) 

 

  Motion to Approve by:  Walker      2nd  by:  Moritz   Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0   Abstain: 0  

 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the unused entitlement transfer 
will be from the VA Hospital to Mid-Pen Housing for a 62-unit veteran housing project. The 
new housing will bring in $89,280 in revenue in FY 2025-26. 
 

8. Discussion and Direction of the Electric Vehicle Plan  
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez outline the Electric Vehicle (EV) Plan  
which included transitioning to an EV fleet for light and medium duty vehicles. Items 
discussed included day-to-day procedures, total cost of ownership, fuel consumption metrics, 
vehicle availability, and suitability.  
 

9.   Establish December 11, 2024, as the Date of a Public Hearing to Consider Amending the    
       Code of General Regulations to Add Recycled Water Charges 
 

  Motion to Approve by: Walker     2nd  by:  Moritz  Vote:   AYE: 5   NAY: 0   Abstain:  0 

 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported a Code update is necessary to 
incorporate recycled water language and charges.  
 

 
3A-2



 

 

10. Report and Discussion on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported 8.8 MG was processed and 5.4 
MG delivered to Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club in September. He also reported the 
proposed annual O&M budget will increase by 10.5%. The next facility O&M meeting will be 
held on November 19th.  
 

11.     Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update  
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported that Meta’s Willow Village 
project plans are currently under review. When the Will-Serve letter is issued for the project, 
it will include capital contribution fees for recycled water. The Board’s consensus was that 
recycled water fees from Meta are necessary to ensure the Bayfront Recycled Water Project 
moves forward. The fees must be paid in 2025 to maintain cashflow.  
 

12. Report, Discussion and Direction on South Bayside Waste Management Authority  
 (SBWMA) including Solid Waste Franchise Re-Assignment 
 

Discussion/Comments: None.  

13. Report, Discussion & Direction on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion 
 on SVCW CIP Program and Financing 
 

Discussion/Comments: Director Otte reported acceptance of the tunnel construction project, 
and the front of the plant construction project acceptance is scheduled for next month. He 
continued to report on a proposed interim project to improve the existing levee.  
 

  14. Closed Session 
 

A.   PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT/CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
        Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager; General Counsel 
        Employees: Represented and Unrepresented Employees 

   
Entered closed session at  9:11 p.m.  Left closed session at 9:51 p.m. 
 
Reportable action: None.  
 

15. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be  
 Placed on Future Agenda 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the November 27th Board 
meeting will be cancelled. The next Board meeting will be a special board meeting on 
December 4th followed by two regular meetings on December 11th and December 18th.  

 
16. Adjournment Time:  The meeting was adjourned at 9:52 PM 
 
 

3A-3



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3B 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. District Engineer 
  
Subject: Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No.1616 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities at 104 Constitutional Drive (Menlo Portal, 
old addresses 110 Constitution Drive and 115 Independence 
Drive), Menlo Park, California 

 
 
 
Background 
 
This permit was for rerouting an existing lateral to two new main extensions; one along 
Constitution Drive and the other along Independence Drive to the existing 54-inch main 
that can accommodate this development.  
 
Analysis  

The Board issued this Permit at the Regular Meeting of March 23, 2022. 
 
The work has been completed, inspected, tested, and approved by staff as being in 
conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a one-year 
guarantee for the work in the form of a maintenance bond. 
 
Recommendation  

The District Engineer recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and directs 
the General Manager to approve Class 3 Permit No. 1616. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permit (1616) 
            Exhibit A: Site Map 
  

3B-1



3B-2



OFFICE BUILDING
(SEPARATE PERMIT)

MULTIFAMILY
BUILDING

IN
D

EPEN
D

EN
C

E

D
R

IVE

INDEPENDENCE
DRIVE

CONSTITUTION

DRIVE

PAD=6.50

UTILITY ROOM
PAD=8.00

RES. AMENITIES
PAD=11.00

ELECTRICAL
PAD=9.46

GARAGE INTERIOR
PAD=9.00

LOADING DOCK
PAD=9.00

GARAGE INTERIOR
PAD=9.00

R
ES

. A
M

EN
IT

IE
S

PA
D

=1
1.

00

ELECTRICAL
PAD=9.48

PAD=5.67

ELEVATOR
PAD=5.00

ELEVATOR
PAD=5.00

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TY

 G
P

S 
A

S-
B

U
IL

T 
/ G

P
S 

D
A

TA
 C

O
M

P
IL

ED
 A

N
D

 D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y 
P

R
ES

TO
N

 P
IP

EL
IN

ES

M
EN

LO
 P

A
R

K
, C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

M
EN

LO
 P

O
R

TA
L 

A
S 

B
U

IL
T

CA LIC. NO. 1059395

CLASS: A, C-16, C-34, C-42

133 Bothelo Avenue
Milpitas, CA, 95035

Telephone: (408) 262-1418
Fax: (408) 262-1870

www.prestonpipelines.com

N
STORM DRAIN

SANITARY SEWER

DOMESTIC WATER

FIRE SERVICE

NATURAL GAS

ENGINEERED PLAN

3B-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEPENDENCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
111 INDEPENDENCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 CONSTITUTION DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x7'6" PG&E UCD TRANSFORMER (F.V.T.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x8'6" PG&E UCD TRANSFORMER (F.V.T.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
90"x106" PG&E PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER WITH BUS DUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
90"x106" PG&E PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER WITH BUS DUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. OH TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTITUTION  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEPENDENCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE DEVELOPMENT (PHASE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
36'±F/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL HOLE FOR GAS TIE-IN. WHEN EXCAVATING OR TRENCHING KEEP CLEAR OF EXISTING FACILITIES. (TYPICAL) CAUTION!! ENERGIZED FACILITIES!! HAND EXCAVATE ONLY IN PRESENCE OF INSPECTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL HOLE FOR EXISTING GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SVC. CUT-OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
. WHEN EXCAVATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR TRENCHING KEEP CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF EXISTING FACILITIES. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCAUTION!! ENERGIZED FACILITIES!!

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND EXCAVATE ONLY IN PRESENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF INSPECTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL HOLE FOR GAS TIE-IN. WHEN EXCAVATING OR TRENCHING KEEP CLEAR OF EXISTING FACILITIES. (TYPICAL) CAUTION!! ENERGIZED FACILITIES!! HAND EXCAVATE ONLY IN PRESENCE OF INSPECTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL HOLE FOR EXISTING GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SVC. CUT-OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
. WHEN EXCAVATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR TRENCHING KEEP CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF EXISTING FACILITIES. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCAUTION!! ENERGIZED FACILITIES!!

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND EXCAVATE ONLY IN PRESENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF INSPECTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x7'6" PG&E UCD TRANSFORMER (F.V.T.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MSB# 120 1600A 277/480V 3  4WSERVICE TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"x60"x48" TELE. BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. TRANSFORMER TO REMAIN (T-5869)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36"x60"x48" TELE. BOX (FTV)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVED & REPLACED EX. PAVEMENT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT OF PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC TIE-IN LOCATION: EX. POLE INSTALLED ON TEMP POWER PM#35290639 TO BE UTILIZED FOR PERMANENT POWER TIE-IN.  J.T. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH PG&E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36"x60"x48" TELE. BOX (FTV)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. LIGHT INSTALLED ON PH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUB E,G,T,C, FOR FUTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL HOLE FOR GAS TIE-IN. WHEN EXCAVATING OR TRENCHING KEEP CLEAR OF EXISTING FACILITIES. (TYPICAL) CAUTION!! ENERGIZED FACILITIES!! HAND EXCAVATE ONLY IN PRESENCE OF INSPECTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL HOLE FOR EXISTING GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SVC. CUT-OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
. WHEN EXCAVATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR TRENCHING KEEP CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF EXISTING FACILITIES. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCAUTION!! ENERGIZED FACILITIES!!

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND EXCAVATE ONLY IN PRESENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF INSPECTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x6' PG&E BOX (F.V.T.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. LIGHT INSTALLED ON PH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. LIGHT INSTALLED ON PH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. LIGHT INSTALLED ON PH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. LIGHT INSTALLED ON PH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHBOARD: (MSH1) : (MSH1) (MSH1) 3000A, 277/480V, 3 , 4W-400A FP MTR (40HP) -200A RTL -2000A HSE & EV (4)ELEV@40HP EA (3)FANS@30HP EA (2)COMP@10HP EA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHBOARD:  (MS1R) :  (MS1R) (MS1R) 2500A, 120/208V, 3 , 4W   108 RES METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHBOARD: (MS2R)  (MS2R) (MS2R) 2500A, 120/208V, 3 , 4W   98 RES METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPOE ROOM TELE. & CATV (FIRST LEVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHBOARD: (MBH2) 3000A, 277/480V, 3 , 4W-266 EVC @ 7.2KVA EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHBOARD: (MS3R) : (MS3R) (MS3R) 2500A, 120/208V, 3 , 4W   123 RES METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPOE ROOM TELE. & CATV (FIRST LEVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JT SERVICE BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MULTI-FAMILY  DEVELOPMENT (PHASE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ST. LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"x60"x48" TELE. BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"x60"x48" TELE. BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"x42"x12" CATV BOX (F.T.V)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"x60"x48" TELE. BOX (F.T.V)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x6' PG&E BOX 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MULTI-FAMILY  DEVELOPMENT (PHASE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x6' PG&E BOX (FVT) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x6' PG&E BOX (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
803

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C=O

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE-INTO EX. SL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE INTO EX. STL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STREET LIGHT TO HAVE A STERNBERG ROTARY DIMMER MODULE INSTALLED. (TYP) FOR 2 EX LIGHTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT W/DIMMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT W/DIMMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT W/DIMMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT W/DIMMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STREET LIGHT TO HAVE A STERNBERG ROTARY DIMMER MODULE INSTALLED. (TYP) FOR 2 EX LIGHTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT W/DIMMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ST. LIGHT W/DIMMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. STREET LIGHT TO HAVE A STERNBERG ROTARY DIMMER MODULE INSTALLED. (TYP) FOR 2 EX LIGHTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG&E TO INSTALL #7 BOX AND REMOVE EXISTING #6 BOX ON PG&E BETTERMENT PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x6' PG&E BOX 

AutoCAD SHX Text
801

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELE & CATVE TIE-IN LOCATION: JT CONTRACTOR TO PICKUP AND EXTEND TELE AND CATV CONDUIT INSTALLED ON PREVIOUS "RELOCATION" PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"x42"x12" CATV BOX (F.T.V)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVED & REPLACED EX. PAVEMENT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
250'(A1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
W3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
240'(E1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text
92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H3

AutoCAD SHX Text
59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H3

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H9

AutoCAD SHX Text
43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
H3

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H3

AutoCAD SHX Text
29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
H6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
355' (TOTAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W1

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H14

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
W3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
W3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H7

AutoCAD SHX Text
83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
H3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'6"x8'6"x6' PG&E BOX (F.V.T.) -SLURRY REQUIRED  BETWEEN VAULT  AND SD LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'x60' STRATA VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: SEE PLUMBING SHEETS FOR ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES WITHIN BUILDING PAD LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.76 EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL INFRASTRUCTURE : ALL INFRASTRUCTURE WITHIN LIMIT OF WORK LINE PRINTED IN COLOR RED SHALL RED SHALL SHALL BE INSTALLED UNDER THIS PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMPLING MH RIM 9.45 8" INV IN 5.18-N 8" INV OUT 5.08-S (SEE DETAIL 6/C6.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH RIM 9.10 8" INV IN 4.35-N 8" INV THRU (3.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" FIRE WATER POC SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DOMESTIC WATER POC SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" IRRIGATION WATER POC SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" RECYCLED WATER POC SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH RIM 8.10 12" INV IN 2.08-S 24" INV THRU 0.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
602'-54"SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 10" PVC WATER (PER BLOCK MAP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" PVC WATER (PER KIMLEY HORN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" STORM(PER SURVEY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 10" PVC WATER (PER KIMLEY HORN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" PVC WATER (PER KIMLEY HORN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC WATER (PER FREYER & LAURETA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"SS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.489

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GL CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.934

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 5 CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.091

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTHING FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.399

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.446

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 4 CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.182

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" IRRIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.723

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" IRRIG CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.977

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" ?

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.703

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" ? CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.054

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.385

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.682

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.836

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" ? AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.702

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" ? AC CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.452

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.306

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.227

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.207

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.668

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.188

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB BOTTOM EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.234

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB TOP EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB TOP EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.977

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.247

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.257

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.476

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.166

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"?

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.505

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"? CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.428

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.802

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.751

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" GL CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.225

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.074

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.528

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.209

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.813

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.201

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CONDUIT CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.485

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.295

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.183

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.368

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" SS CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.388

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1"X4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.329

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1"X4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.316

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.614

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.676

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.873

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.298

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.989

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.896

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.618

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.818

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.633

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.564

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.417

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.371

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.276

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.309

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.437

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.091

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.615

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SD CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.858

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SD CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.703

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.717

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.545

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.055

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.369

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.042

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.258

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.489

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GL CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.934

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 5 CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.091

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTHING FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.399

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.446

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1" X 4 CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.182

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" IRRIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.723

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" IRRIG CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.977

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" ?

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.703

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" ? CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.054

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.385

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.682

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.836

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" ? AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.702

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" ? AC CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.452

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.306

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.227

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.207

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.668

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.188

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB BOTTOM EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.234

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB TOP EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB TOP EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.977

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.247

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.257

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.476

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.166

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"?

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.505

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"? CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.428

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SS CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.802

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.751

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" GL CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.225

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.074

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.528

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.209

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.813

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.201

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CONDUIT CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.485

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.295

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.183

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.368

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" SS CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.388

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1"X4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.329

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM 1"X4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.316

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.614

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.676

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.873

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" GL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.298

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.989

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.896

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.618

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.818

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.633

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.564

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.417

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONDUIT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.371

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.276

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.309

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.437

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.091

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONDUIT SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.615

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SD CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.858

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SD CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.703

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.717

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.545

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.055

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.369

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DW CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.042

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.258

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GL A

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.423

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GL B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.472

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) SSMH#4 SSMH#4 54" SS THRU -3.19 54" SS TOP 1.31 8" SS INV 1.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" 83LF S=0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH#3 RIM 8.11 8" INV IN 4.63-S 8" INV THRU (3.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOLS LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
JPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PPI JOB:

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-16-2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE =

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" : 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-223

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINETYPE LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK VALVE ANODE TEST STATION BLOW-OFF VALVE AIR RELIEF VALVE DOMESTIC WATER METER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN CLEANOUT WATER LINE REDUCER AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER RISER  FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN (SDCB) JUNCTION BOX AREA DRAIN BUBBLER STORM DRAIN MANHOLE SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE DETECTOR CHECK VALVE BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE SINGLE DETECTOR CHECK VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT POST-INDICATOR VALVE WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT PIPE STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3C 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. District Engineer 
  
Subject: Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permits No. 1617 and 1619 for the Sewer 
Improvements for Menlo Uptown at 141 Jefferson Drive and 180 
& 186 Constitution Drive, Menlo Park, California 

 
 
 
Background 
 
The Developer installed a manhole at the connection to the main for Constitution Drive 
site under Class 3 Permit No. 1617.  In addition, the Developer upsized two sections of 
main sewer, one along Jefferson Drive and one along Chrysler Drive, due to bottlenecks 
to accommodate the additional flows under Class 3 Permit No. 1619.   
 
Analysis  
The Board issued these Permits at the Regular Meeting of April 13, 2022. 
 
The work has been completed, inspected, tested, and approved by staff as being in 
conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a one-year 
guarantee for the work in the form of a maintenance bond. 
 
Recommendation  

The District Engineer recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and directs 
the General Manager to approve Class 3 Permits No. 1617 and 1619. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permits (1617 and 1619) 
            Exhibit A: Site Map 
  

3C-1



XXXXXXXXXXXX

3C-2



3C-3



Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICTSITE LOCATION - CLASS 3 #1617 & 1619
180 AND 186 CONSTITUTION DRIVE (#1617)

141 JEFFERSON DRIVE (#1619)
MENLO PARK, CA

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS #1619

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS #1617

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS #1619

141 JEFFERSON

180 & 186 CONSTITUTION

.

3C-4



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3D 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. District Engineer 
  
Subject: Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Issue Class 3 

Permit 24-198 for 6-inch Sewer Main Replacement at 811 Bay 
Road, Menlo Park, California 

 
 
Background 
 
The District has an existing 6-inch mainline along the back side of property line at 811 
Bay Road without an easement. The Applicant submitted a Two-Lot Condominium Map 
to the City of Menlo Park for approval to subdivide this property. As part of approval for 
this project, the District staff conditioned the project to dedicate a 10’ sewer easement to 
the District and replace the existing 6-inch mainline with a new 6-inch PVC C900.  
 
Analysis 
 
District staff reviewed the plans, profiles, and engineering calculations for the proposed 
sewer main and it conforms to District requirements. The owner has paid all associated 
fees. 

 
Fiscal Impact 
 
No impact to the District. 
 
Recommendation  

The District Engineer recommends that the District Board direct and authorize the 
General Manager to issue Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 24-198. 
 
Attachments:    Resolution ____ (2024) 
   Notice of Exemption 

Class 3 Permit (24-198) 
Pipeline Replacement Plan 

 
 

3D-1



 RESOLUTION NO.______ (2024) 
  
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
 
 *****  
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the District Board of West Bay Sanitary District, County of 
San Mateo, State of California, as follows:  
  
 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REVIEW  
 
Name of Project: 811 Bay Road Public Sewer Pipeline Replacement 
  
Location:  Within a proposed easement along the rear side of property line at 

811 Bay Road, Menlo Park, California.  
 
Entity or Person Undertaking Project:  Bay Development Investment LLC.  
  
Determination of the District Board:  
  
The District Board hereby certifies that it has reviewed the Preliminary Review and Notice 
of Exemption prepared for this project and has considered the contents thereof.  The 
Board finds that this document is adequate for use by the District in its review of the 
project.  
  
The District Board finds that the following feasible alternatives and/or mitigation measures 
within its powers, would substantially lessen any significant effects which the project would 
have on the environment: 
                
 N/A 
  
The Board certifies that the Preliminary Review and Notice of Exemption has been 
prepared and completed in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and 
the State Guidelines.   
                
The Board finds that the project Preliminary Review and Notice of Exemption identifies the 
following significant effects:  
              
  N/A  
  
The Board further finds that for each of these significant effects.   
 N/A Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated, into the  
  project which mitigate or avoid the significant environmental effects thereof  
  as identified in the Final EIR.   
 

3D-2



 N/A Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of a 
  public agency other than the District. Such changes have been adopted by  
  such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.   
 
 N/A Specific economic, social, or other considerations make infeasible the 

 mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.   
 
 Based upon the foregoing, and upon compliance with District regulations and 
 requirements, as applicable, the project is hereby:  
  
 ____  Approved  
  
 ____  Disapproved  
  
 The General Manager of West Bay Sanitary District is directed to prepare a Notice 
of Exemption pursuant to the provisions of the State Guidelines Implementing the 
California Environmental Quality Act adopted by Resolution No. 1105 of this District Board. 
The General Manager is not directed to prepare and file a Statement of Overriding 
Consideration pertaining to the approval of this project pursuant to the provisions of the 
same Guidelines.   
  

***** 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 4th day of December 2024, by the following vote:  
  
Ayes:  
  
Noes:  
  
Abstain:  
  
Absent:  
             ______________________________ 
       President of the District Board of the  
       West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
       County, State of California  
Attest:  
  
_________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
County, State of California 
       

3D-3



Notice of Exemption 
 
To: County Clerk     From:  West Bay Sanitary District 
 County of San Mateo     500 Laurel Street 
 555 County Center       Menlo Park CA 94025 
 Redwood City, CA 94063 
 
Project Title: 811 Bay Road Public Sewer Pipeline Replacement 
 
Project Location – Specific: Within a proposed easement along the westerly 

portion of 811 Bay Road, Menlo Park, California.  
 
Project Location – City: Menlo Park Project Location – County:  San Mateo 
 
Description of Project: Replacement of gravity public sewer pipeline  
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: West Bay Sanitary District  
 
Name of Person or Entity Carrying Out Project: Bay Development Investment LLC. 
 
Exempt Status:    
CEQA Guidelines Section 15601(b)(3), General Rule; 
Categorical Exemption.  Class 1 – Section 15301 (b) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 
(b) Existing facilities of both investor and publicly-owned utilities used to provide electric 
power, natural gas, sewerage, or other public utility services. 

  
Reasons why project is exempt:  
This project is exempt from CEQA because it can be “seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant impact on the 
environment.”  This certainty is based on the District’s past experience with numerous 
sewer construction projects of this nature, and the mitigated measures included in all 
such projects to alleviate any impacts.  Most project elements also are exempt as minor 
alteration of existing public utilities with negligible or no expansion of use.   
 
Lead Agency: West Bay Sanitary District 
 
Lead Agency Contact Person: Sergio Ramirez  (650) 321-0384 
 
_____________________  Date: ___________ Title: General Manager 
Signature 
 

3D-4



“PRELIMINARY REVIEW” 
 

811 Bay Road Public Sewer Pipeline Replacement  
December 4, 2024 

 
INTRODUCTION.  At the December 4, 2024 District Board Meeting, the Board will 
consider the approval of the Class 3 Sewer Permit for the replacement of a gravity 
public sewer pipeline within a new easement at 811 Bay Road, Menlo Park; and the 
authorization for the filing of a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) “Notice of 
Exemption” for the project.  This project is proposed by the District at 811 Bay Road, 
Menlo Park and by Bay Development Investment LLC. 
  
EXEMPTION REVIEW.  In compliance with CEQA Guidelines, this “preliminary review” 
of the gravity public sewer pipeline realignment within an easement at 811 Bay Road, 
Menlo Park was conducted to determine whether the project is exempt from CEQA.  
Based on this review, staff has concluded that the project is exempt from CEQA under 
several sections of the guidelines.  In summary, the project would not have any 
significant impacts on the environment because it includes little or no expansion of 
capacity, and will employ mitigation measures to alleviate any impacts. 
 
This preliminary review presents and elaborates upon the rationale for the conclusions 
reached by staff. 
 

Staff has concluded that all project elements are exempt under CEQA Guidelines 
section 15061(b)(3) (known as the ”General Rule”), since it can be “seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment.” 

 
This certainty is based on the District’s past experience with numerous sewer 
construction projects of this nature, and the mitigation measures included in all such 
projects to alleviate any impacts. 
 
Past Experience.  The District has completed many miles of sewer construction projects 
and pump station rehabilitation projects in commercial and residential areas throughout 
Menlo Park, Atherton, and the County of San Mateo, including the Portola Valley area.  
While construction-related impacts on land use, traffic, noise, air quality, erosion, 
drainage, public safety, and cultural resources can occur, no significant environmental 
impacts have resulted from this work. 
 
The reasons these have been “less-than-significant” include the short-term nature of 
construction activities, application of the District’s standard construction mitigation 
measures, good community relations outreach programs to inform project area 
residents of construction activities, and active coordination with local jurisdictions. 
 
Construction Mitigation Measures.  Specific impact mitigation measures will be included 
in the proposed project to avoid, minimize, reduce, or rectify for construction-related 
impacts.  These measures are used on all sewer construction projects. The measures 
address dust control; erosion control; noise control; protection of soils; provision for 
adequate drainage; protection and restoration of structures; precautions for working 

3D-5



near sensitive and unique vegetation, protection and restoration of vegetation, 
landscaping, and improvements; public health and safety precautions; community 
notifications; traffic control; and preservation of cultural resources. 
 
Most project elements also are exempt as minor alteration of existing public utilities with 
negligible or no expansion of use.   
 

Staff has concluded that most project elements are “categorically exempt” under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (b) of the State CEQA Guidelines.  (b) Existing 
facilities of both investor and publicly-owned utilities used to provide electric 
power, natural gas, sewerage, or other public utility services. 

 
CONCLUSION.   Based on the information presented herein, staff has concluded that 
all of the replacement of the gravity sewer main line is exempt from CEQA under the 
CEQA Guidelines Section15061(b)(3) (the General Rule), and that most project 
elements are also exempt under CEQA Guideline Section 15301 (b). 
 

3D-6



ADDITIONAL SITES

CHRONOLOGY

CONTACTS
NAME TYPE NAME ADDRESS1 CITY STATE ZIP PHONE FAX EMAIL

APPLICANT Vincent Joutain 400 Concar Dr San Mateo CA 94402 (415)823-6307 vjoutain@bayredev.us

BUSINESS NAME 
PAYING FEES

Bay Development Investments LLC 400 Concar Dr San Mateo CA 94402 (415)823-6307 vjoutain@bayredev.us

GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR

Mission Development Group 2310 Homestead Road 
Ste C1 #128

Los Altos CA 94024 (408)464-5030 tracy_hsu@yahoo.com

OWNER BAY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS 
LLC

400 CONCAR DR SAN MATEO CA 94402268
1

(415)823-6307 vjoutain@bayredev.us

CONDITIONS

Description: 811 Bay Road / Yuitne Lei

Type: CLASS 1A SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENCE SFR OPEN TRENCH

Subtype: FULL OPEN TRENCH 
REPAIR

Status: PAYMENT DUE Applied: 10/29/2024 EPRS

Parcel No: 062065050 Site Address: 811 BAY RD MENLO PARK,CA Approved:  

Subdivision: Block:          Lot: Issued:  

Lot Sq Ft: 0 Building Sq Ft: 0 Zoning: Finaled:  

Valuation: $0.00 Occupancy Type: Construction Type: Expired:  

No. Buildings: 0 No. Stories: 0 No. Unites: 0

Details: 811 Bay Road / Yuitne Lei

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Printed: Tuesday, October 29, 2024 2:48:36 PM 1 of 2

Permit Details
West Bay Sanitary District

PERMIT NUMBER
24-198

3D-7



ATTACHMENTS

BOND INFORMATION

INSPECTIONS
INSPECTION TYPE INSPECTOR SCHEDULED

DATE
COMPLETED

DATE
RESULT REMARKS NOTES

PROPERTY LINE CLEANOUT 
1:00-3:00PM

GSAN

LATERAL 1:00-3:00PM GSAN

SPOT REPAIR 1:00-3:00PM GSAN

REVIEWS

REVIEW TYPE REVIEWER SENT DATE DUE DATE RETURNED 
DATE

STATUS REMARKS NOTES

PARENT PROJECTS

DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT QTY AMOUNT PAID PAID DATE RECEIPT # CHECK # METHOD PAID BY CLTD 
BY

CLASS 1A PERMIT 41020100R100101 0 $490.00 $0.00

Total Paid for CLASS 1A PERMIT: $490.00 $0.00
RESIDENTIAL 

CONNECTION FEE 41030200R100120 0 $8,608.00 $0.00

Total Paid for RESIDENTIAL CONNECTION FEE: $8,608.00 $0.00

TOTALS: $9,098.00 $0.00

Printed: Tuesday, October 29, 2024 2:48:36 PM 2 of 2

Permit Details
West Bay Sanitary District

PERMIT NUMBER
24-198

3D-8



••

••••

•• ••

NOTE:
FOR CONSTRUCTION STAKING
SCHEDULING OR QUOTATIONS
PLEASE CONTACT ALEX ABAYA
AT LEA & BRAZE ENGINEERING
(510)887-4086 EXT 116.
aabaya@leabraze.com

THE CITY OF MENLO PARK REQUIRES LEA & BRAZE
ENGINEERING, INC. TO INSPECT ALL STORM DRAINAGE AS IT
IS INSTALLED. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO
CONTACT LEA & BRAZE ENGINEERING, INC. PRIOR TO START
OF CONSTRUCTION TO SET UP A PRE-CONSTRUCTION
MEETING, AND TO CALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF
ANY INSPECTIONS. PIPES ARE TO REMAIN UNCOVERED
UNTIL AN INSPECTION OCCURS.

POINT OF CONTACT:
PETER CARLINO
• • • •• •• • • • • •• • • •• • • • •• • •• •• • ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
(510)887-4086   pcarlino@leabraze.com

- UNIT 2 SET

FOR REFERENCE ONLY

3D-9



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3E 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. District Engineer 
  
Subject: Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to 

Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 24-198 for Proposed Sewer Easement 
for 811 Bay Road, Menlo Park, California 

 
 
Background 
 
The District has an existing 6-inch mainline along the westerly portion of property line at 
811 Bay Road without an easement. The Applicant submitted a Two-Lot Condominium 
Map to the City of Menlo Park for approval to subdivide this property. As part of 
approval for this project, the District staff conditioned the project to dedicate a 10’ sewer 
easement to the District and replace the existing 6-inch mainline with a new 6-inch PVC 
C900.  
 
Recommendation  

The District Engineer recommends that the Board adopt the attached Resolution 
accepting the Deed of Easement.   
 
Attachments:  Resolution ________(2024)  

           Grant Deed of Easement 
 

3E-1



 RESOLUTION NO.____ (2024) 
 
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
  
 ***** 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the President and Secretary of the West Bay Sanitary 
District be and are hereby authorized to accept the attached Grant Deed of Easement 
by and between the following parties: 
 

Bay Development Investment LLC. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby directed to place the 
same on record. 
 ***** 
 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 4th day of December, 2024, by the following vote: 
 
 
 Ayes:   
 
 Noes:   
 
 Abstain:  

 
 Absent:  
 
      __________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the West  
      Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo County,  
      State of California 
 Attest: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Secretary of the District Board of the  
 West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
 County, State of California  
                  

3E-2



3E-3



3E-4



3E-5



3E-6



3E-7



3E-8



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3F 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. District Engineer 
  
Subject: Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to 

Class 5 Sewer Permit No. 18033 for the Construction of 
Wastewater Facilities for 35 Possum Lane, Portola Valley, 
California 

 
 
Background 
 
The District requires an easement to maintain the flow from a grinder pump system that 
serves 35 Possum Lane. The easement includes ingress and egress to the location of 
the grinder pump system and is conforming to District specifications.  
 
Recommendation  

The District Engineer recommends that the Board adopt the attached Resolution 
accepting the Deed of Easement.   
 
Attachments:  Resolution ________(2024)  

 Grant Deed of Easement 
 
 

3F-1



 RESOLUTION NO.____ (2024) 
 
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
  
 ***** 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the President and Secretary of the West Bay Sanitary 
District be and are hereby authorized to accept the attached Grant Deed of Easement 
by and between the following parties: 
 

Alon Krashinsky and Jennifer Liu 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby directed to place the 
same on record. 
 ***** 
 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 4th day of December, 2024, by the following vote: 
 
 
 Ayes:   
 
 Noes:   
 
 Abstain:  

 
 Absent:  
 
      __________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the West  
      Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo County,  
      State of California 
 Attest: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Secretary of the District Board of the  
 West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
 County, State of California  
                  

3F-2



3F-3



3F-4



3F-5



3F-6



3F-7



3F-8



3F-9



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 3G 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Fariborz Heydari, P.E. District Engineer 
  
Subject: Consider Accepting Wastewater Facilities Constructed 

Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 18032 for the 
Construction of Force Main Extension, and Class 5 Permit No. 
18033 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 35 
Possum Lane, Portola Valley, California 

 
 
 
Background 
 
These permits requests were for the extension of the existing force main, and 
construction of a Grinder Pump System connected to a WBSD force main (FM) 
constructed as part of this project located on Possum Lane in Portola Valley. 
 

Analysis  

The Board issued these Permits at the Regular Meeting of August 9, 2023. 
 
The work has been completed, inspected, tested, and approved by staff as being in 
conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a one-year 
guarantee for the work in the form of a maintenance bond. 
 
Recommendation  

The District Engineer recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and directs 
the General Manager to approve Class 3 Permit No. 18032 and Class 5 Permit No. 
18033. 
 
Attachments:  Class 3 Permit (18032) 
            Class 5 Permit (18033) 
   Site Map 

3G-1



3G-2



3G-3



© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
35 POSSUM LANE

PORTOLA VALLEY, CA
STEP SYSTEM

Main_Extension
OWDZ Pump System
OWDZ Force Main

(1) STEP System
300 Gallons Per Day (GPD)
APN: 077-051-030
35 Possum Ln
Portola Valley, CA
Main Line Extension from 20 Meadow Ln

.

3G-4



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager  
 

Subject: General Manager’s Report  
 

1) Administrative:     
a. The Succession Plan conducted by CPS HR Consulting was discussed on November 13, 

2024 during the Board meeting. 
b. The draft EV plan was presented to the Board on November 13, 2024 during the Board 

meeting.   
2) Finance:  

a. The District received the first Bayfront Recycled Water Facility reimbursement check for 
$832,801.00 from State’s SRF program.  

b. The draft Financial Audit report will be reviewed by the Finance Committee on December 
3, 2024 prior to bringing it to the full Board.   

3) CIP Projects:   

a. Capital Improvement Program (CIP): 

i. Casey Construction continues to rehabilitate Willow Road Pump Station. Most of 
the work has been completed. The remaining item to be done is the installation of 
the new standby generator.   
 

b. Levee Improvement Project:    

i. Anderson Pacific is working on the second phase of the levee project. 
 

c. Point Repair Project Phase II: 
i. Casey Construction continues to replace numerous pipe segments as part of the 

Phase II Point Repair Project and is nearly completed.  
d. Telemetry Replacement Project: 

i. Blocka Construction has begun the Telemetry Replacement Project. The project 
includes replacing the alarm and remote monitoring systems at twelve pump 
station sites.  
 

4) Information Technology (IT): 
a. Staff continues to work with the City of East Palo Alto to update its database for their 

sanitary district.   



 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

 
5) Operations and Maintenance:   

a. Collection System:  
i. District Crews responded to a service call on Santa Cruz Ave. in Menlo Park 

regarding a PG&E pole inside of a fifteen-inch Asbestos Cement Sewer main.  
  

b. Pump Facilities:  
i. Field site visits have been conducted by Blocka Construction and parts have been 

ordered for the telemetry project.   
    

c. Training: 
i. Harassment training is scheduled for December.   

 
6) Water Quality: 

a. Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (SHGCC): 
i. The annual 2025 O&M budget projections were submitted to SHGCC on 

November 19. The O&M costs are expected to rise 10.5% approximately or from 
$671,950 to $742,100 per year. The 10.5% increase is due to PG&E increases 
and insurance costs.  

 
b. Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BRWF):  

i. The Parkline - SRI developer inquired about the recycled water pipeline for their 
project. The District may consider fast tracking the design.  
 

7) Fleet and Facilities:  
a. Vehicle Maintenance:  

i. Staff will draft a staff report to add vehicles to the fleet to support the East Palo 
Alto interagency agreement.  
 

8) Personnel: 

i. Recruitment for an Engineering Technician has begun. The recruitment is on 
several platforms including CalOpps.org, GovernmentJobs.com, and Indeed.  

 
9) Upcoming Events:  

a. Next Regular Board Meetings: Wednesdays, December 11 and December 18, 2024.  

 

10)  Misc. Items:  
a. West Bay: The General Manager will update the Board on miscellaneous items related to 

District operations.   

b. Town of Los Altos Hills: Staff continue to maintain the collection system and contribute 
to CIP recommendations.  

c. Town of Woodside: Staff continues to maintain the Town’s pump stations and collection 
system.  

d. East Palo Alto: On November 7, West Bay crews responded to a sewer spill at the corner 
of Clark Avenue and Donohoe Street. When they arrived, they found a six-inch clay sewer 
main pipeline to be collapsed. They immediately began to repair the pipe in order to 
reinstate sewer service for the neighborhood.  



WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

 
 
 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Debra Fisher, Finance Manager 

 Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Approving Resolution Adopting FY 2024-25 Budget 
 

 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

 

Background 
The District held a Budget Workshop on May 1, 2024 to work on the development of the fiscal 
year 2024-2025 (FY 2024-25) Budget.  Based on initial District estimates and updated 
information the Budget Report was developed, in conformity with the format prescribed by the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards.  On June 12, 2024 the Board approved the 
FY 2024-25 budget.   
 
On July 24, 2024 the District signed a five year agreement with the City of East Palo Alto to 
provide services for the East Palo Alto Sanitary District’s (EPASD) 35 miles of gravity sewer 
pipelines.  In October 2024, District staff began performing services included in the agreement.  
At the November 13, 2024 board meeting, the Board requested the budget be revised to include 
the contract with EPASD.  A preliminary budget was reviewed by the Finance Committee on 
November 19, 2024.   
 
The revised detailed FY 2024-25 Budget Report is included for the Board’s review and approval.  
Each fund is recorded separately to better view the primary operations and other activities in the; 
General, Capital, SVCW, Solid Waste, and Recycled Water Funds.  The consolidated budget 
includes all District Funds.  The General, Capital, and SVCW Funds combined comprise 
Collections Operations and are reported in the aggregate.  Only the General and Capital Funds 
have been revised, since the original budget approval.  
 
The District has received more current information on budget items.  Below is a summary of the 
changes made since the Board approved the initial proposed budget at the Budget Workshop.  

 Collections:  General, Capital, SVCW Funds 

o Revenue: 

 Total revenue increased 3% from the original approved budget FY 2024-25.  The 
revised budget revenue is 5% greater than FY 2023-24 budget. 

 Other Services increased $1,090,449 for nine months of services, increasing 
Other Services by 134%. 

5-1



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

o Expenditures: 

 Total expenditures increased $1,089,631 or 6% from the original approved 
budget. 

 Salaries and benefits increased 6% from the original budget, with the 
addition of seven staff.  

 5 Maintenance Workers 
o 2 Supervisors (CCTV & Maintenance) 
o 1 CCTV Technician 
o 2 Maintenance Workers 

 1 Engineer Technician 
 1 Construction Inspector 

 Materials & Supplies increased 12% from the original budget.  This includes 
fuel and operating supplies. 

 Other Operating Expenses, including personal protective equipment, staff 
development, and training, increased 2%. 

 Other items were flat or had 1% increases. 

o Capital 

 Three vehicles for $712,000 were added for the additional staff, increasing the 
fleet budget by 88% and the overall capital budget by 3%.   The $27,396,500 in 
total new capital for FY 2024-25, is a 15% increase from FY 2023-24 budget.   

 Ford Maverick, $35k, for Construction Inspector 
 US Jetter, $200k, for new Maintenance Crew 
 CCTV Unit, $480, for CCTV Crew 

Financial Statements Summary: 

The following is a summary of the FY 2024-25 Revised Budget, compared with the FY 
2023-24 Budget. 

 

 Combining Statements 

 Revised Combined 

Budget 

 Original Approved 

Budget 
 Change

Original Budget 

 Change

 Prior Year 

  FY 2024‐25 FY 2024‐25

Operating Revenues 35,667,468                34,577,019               1,090,449                  1,753,001                 

Operating Expenses (18,583,448)               (17,493,817)              (1,089,631)                 (2,104,185)                

SVCW (18,540,559)               (18,540,559)              ‐                             (5,549,711)                

Operating Income (Loss) (1,456,539)                 (1,457,357)                818                            (5,900,895)                

Non‐Operating Rev/Exp 1,021,838                  1,021,838                 ‐                             143,942                    p

Items (434,701)                    (435,518)                   818                            (5,756,953)                

Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) ‐                             ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            

Recycled Water Fund: Capital Contribution 662,900                      662,900                      ‐                              ‐                             

Capital Fund: Connection Fees 250,000                     250,000                    ‐                             ‐                            

Change in Net Position 478,199                      477,382                      818                             (5,756,953)                 

Prior Period Adjustment ‐                             ‐                            ‐                             ‐                            

Change in Net Position ‐ Adjusted 478,199                      477,382                      818                             (5,756,953)                 

5-2



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

Recommendation 
The Finance Manager recommends the Board approve the Revised Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2024-25.  

 
Attachment:   Revised Budget FY 2024-25 
    

5-3



 

WEST	BAY SANITARYDISTRICT 

	
Revised	Budget	

Fiscal	Year	2024‐25	

	

Presented	

December	4,	2024	

 

 

  

5-4



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 2 

 

 

	
Financial	Report	
Revised	Budget	

Fiscal	Year	2024‐25	
 
The West Bay Sanitary District (the District) provides wastewater collection and conveyance services to 
the City of Menlo Park, Atherton, and Portola Valley, and areas of East Palo Alto, Woodside and 
unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara counties. The District conveys raw wastewater, via the 
Menlo Park Pump Station and force main, to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) for treatment and 
discharge to the San Francisco Bay.   The District was originally formed in December 1902 as the Menlo 
Park Sanitary District under the Sanitary Sewer Act of 1891.  The District operated as the Menlo Park 
Sanitary District from 1902 until 1981 when its name was changed to the West Bay Sanitary District to 
more accurately reflect the service area.  The powers of the District are established by the State of 
California Health and Safety Code.  The District currently serves a population of 20,707 households and 
commercial establishments. 
  
A Budget Workshop was held May 1, 2024, to review and develop the fiscal year budget with the full 
District board. On June 12, 2024 the Board approved the FY 2024-25 budget.  On July 24, 2024 the 
District signed a five year agreement with the City of East Palo Alto to provide services for the East Palo 
Alto Sanitary District’s (EPASD) 35 miles of gravity sewer pipelines.  In October 2024, District staff began 
performing services included in the agreement.  At the November 13, 2024 board meeting, the Board 
requested the budget be revised to include the contract with EPASD.   
 
The Budget Report was developed in conformity with the format prescribed by the provisions of the  
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).   

 
 

Table	of	Contents	
 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position   3 

Collections 

 Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Collections   4 

 Revenues   5 

 Expenditures   6 

 Expense Analysis 10 

Capital Fund 11 

 Capital Budget 13 

 Capital Five Year Budget 15 

Reserves 16 

Solid Waste Fund 17 

Recycled Water Fund  

 Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility 18 

 Recycled Water Capital Expenditures 20 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Funds 21 
 

  

5-5



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 3 

 
West Bay Sanitary District 

Revised Consolidated Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

 

 
 
Consolidated Statement: 
West Bay Sanitary District’s consolidated budget conforms to the governmental accounting standards 
board (GASB) reporting standards for local governments, following generally accepted accounting 
principals (GAAP), including all District Funds. 
 

 Unaudited 

Actuals 

 Approved 

Budget 

 Approved 

Budget 

 Revised 

Budget 

 Budget 

Variance 
% Var

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25  

 

Operating Revenues

Residential 26,291,518                       26,200,870                      27,643,947                      27,643,947                      1,443,077                         6%

Non-Residential 5,936,125                         6,276,747                        5,801,413                        5,801,413                        (475,334)                           -8%

    Sewer Service Charges 32,227,643                       32,477,617                    33,445,360                    33,445,360                    967,743                             3%

    Permit & Inspection Fees 403,165                            200,000                          200,000                          200,000                          -                                      0%

    Flow Equalization 447,140                            403,165                          69,210                            69,210                            (333,955)                           -83%

    Other Operating Revenue 949,127                            833,686                          862,449                          1,952,898                      1,119,212                         134%

Operating Revenues 34,027,074                       33,914,468                      34,577,019                      35,667,468                      1,753,001                         5%

Operating Expenses

    Salaries & Benefits 7,022,123                         7,247,613                        7,789,559                        8,539,513                        1,291,900                         18%

    Materials & Supplies 638,382                            790,000                          813,800                          961,912                          171,912                             22%

    Insurance 329,736                             327,900                            368,560                            371,058                            43,158                               13%

    Contract Services 726,126                            916,400                          1,009,652                      1,031,620                      115,220                             13%

    Professional Services 736,059                            1,546,800                      1,671,800                      1,701,275                      154,475                             10%

    Repairs & Maintenance 495,971                            671,100                          719,615                          729,365                          58,265                               9%

    Utilities 480,754                            497,250                          544,430                          546,455                          49,205                               10%

    Other Operating Expenses 254,635                            527,200                          621,401                          640,001                          112,801                             21%

    Depreciation 3,821,663                        3,955,000                      3,955,000                      4,062,250                      107,250                             3%

     Total WBSD Operating Expenses 14,505,450                       16,479,263                    17,493,817                    18,583,448                    2,104,185                         13%

     Sewage Treatment Plant (SVCW) 12,984,204                       12,990,848                    18,540,559                    18,540,559                    5,549,711                         43%

     Total Operating Expenses 27,489,654                       29,470,111                    36,034,376                    37,124,007                    7,653,896                         26%

-                                      

Operating Income (Loss) 6,537,421                         4,444,356                        (1,457,357)                      (1,456,539)                      (5,900,895)                        -133%

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

   Investment Income 3,818,656                        501,600                          501,000                          501,000                          (600)                                    0%

   Other Non-Operating Income 1,288,059                        532,475                          671,950                          671,950                          139,475                             26%

   Interest Expense (156,179)                          (156,179)                        (151,112)                        (151,112)                        5,067                                  -3%

   Other Non-Operating Expenses (311,963)                          -                                   -                                   -                                    -                                      

    Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 2,805,959                        877,896                          1,021,838                      1,021,838                      143,942                             16%

Change in Net Position by Fund 9,343,379                        5,322,252                      (435,518)                        (434,701)                        (5,756,953)                        -108%

Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) (1,489,456)                       

Capital Contributions

   Capital Fund: Connection Fees 617,021                             250,000                            250,000                            250,000                            -                                      0%

   Recycled Water Fund 941,226                            662,900                          662,900                          662,900                          -                                      0%

Change in Net Position 9,412,171                         6,235,152                        477,382                            478,199                            (5,756,953)                        -92%

-                                      

Beginning Net Position 170,984,354                     170,984,354                   182,213,591                   180,396,525                   

Prior Period Adjustment -                                      

Ending Net Position 180,396,525                     177,219,506                   182,690,972                   180,874,724                    

5-6



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 4 

 
 

West Bay Sanitary District 
Collections Budget 

General, Capital, & SVCW Funds 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

 
 
 
Collection Statement: 
West Bay Sanitary District’s collection budget shows the District’s core function of providing wastewater 
collection and conveyance services to the City of Menlo Park, Atherton, Portola Valley, areas of East Palo 
Alto, Woodside, and unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara counties.   

 Unaudited 

Actuals 
 Collections 

Budget 

 Approved 

Collections 

Budget 

 Revised 

Collections 

Budget 

% Var

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25

 

Operating Revenues

Residential 26,291,518               26,200,870              27,643,947              27,643,947              1,443,077                 6%

Non-Residential 5,936,125                 6,276,747                5,801,413                5,801,413                (475,334)                   -8%

    Sewer Service Charges 32,227,643               32,477,617            33,445,360            33,445,360            967,743                    3%

    Permit & Inspection Fees 447,140                    200,000                 200,000                 200,000                 -                            

    Flow Equalization 403,165                    403,165                   69,210                     69,210                     (333,955)                   -83%

    Other Operating Revenue 829,062                    717,886                 739,149                 1,829,598              1,111,712                 155%

Operating Revenues 33,907,010               33,798,668              34,453,719              35,544,168              1,745,500                 5%

Operating Expenses

    Salaries & Benefits 6,816,531                 7,067,613                7,573,559                8,323,513                1,255,900                 18%

    Materials & Supplies 622,545                    751,800                 768,800                 916,912                 165,112                    22%

    Insurance 277,914                    287,900                   322,560                   325,058                   37,158                      13%

    Contract Services 668,785                    916,400                 1,009,652              1,031,620              115,220                    13%

    Professional Services 649,707                    1,469,700              1,572,700              1,602,175              132,475                    9%

    Repairs & Maintenance 474,360                    646,100                 694,615                 704,365                 58,265                      9%

    Utilities 249,844                    288,000                 295,180                 297,205                 9,205                        3%

    Other Operating Expenses 153,344                    430,575                 512,881                 531,481                 100,906                    23%

    Depreciation 3,066,761                 3,200,000              3,200,000              3,307,250              107,250                    3%

     Total WBSD Operating Expenses 12,979,792               15,058,088            15,949,947            17,039,578            1,981,490                 13%

     Sewage Treatment Plant (SVCW) 12,984,204               12,990,848            18,540,559            18,540,559            5,549,711                 43%

     Total Operating Expenses 25,963,996               28,048,936              34,490,506              35,580,137              7,531,201                 27%

Operating Income (Loss) 7,943,014                 5,749,731                (36,787)                    (35,969)                    (5,785,701)                -101%

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

   Investment Income 3,528,764                 500,000                 500,000                 500,000                 -                            

   Other Non-Operating Income 175,521                    -                         -                         -                         -                            

   Interest Expense -                           -                         -                         -                         -                            

   Other Non-Operating Expenses (161,963)                   -                         -                         -                         -                            

   Increase (Decrease) in SVCW (1,832,615)                -                            

    Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 1,709,707                 500,000                 500,000                 500,000                 -                            

Change in Net Position by Fund 9,652,722                 6,249,731              463,213                 464,031                 (5,785,700)                -93%

Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) (1,489,456)                

Capital Contributions -                           

   Capital Fund: Connection Fees 617,021                    250,000                   250,000                   250,000                   -                            

   Recycled Water Fund -                           -                         -                         -                         -                            

Change in Net Position 8,780,287                 6,499,731                713,213                   714,031                   (5,785,700)                -89%

 Budget 

Variance 

5-7



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5 P a g e  | 5 

Collections: General, Capital, & SVCW Funds: 

Collection system is comprised of the General Fund, for direct District expenses, Capital Fund for capital 

expenditures, including depreciation, and the SVCW Fund, for sewage treatment plant activity by Silicon 

Valley Clean Water (SVCW).  These funds represent the sewer service operations.  Solid Waste and 

Recycled Water Funds are detailed separately. 

Revenues: 

The Revised Budget for FY 2024-25 includes total Operating Revenues of $35.5 million in the General 

Fund, reflecting a 5% increase from FY 2023-24 annual budget and 3% higher than the original budget.  

The only revenue change was the Other Operating Revenue increase of $1.09 million. 

 Sewer Service Charges.  Total revenue of $ 33.4 million is estimated, reflecting a 5% increase in 

rates.  Residential customers increased 34, to 20,095 households served.  Lower flows resulted in an 

8% reduction in non-residential sanitary sewer charges, as several commercial customers have 

reduced staff or moved out of the district.  Three years of 5% rate increases are proposed to provide

funding for SVCW capital contribution requirements and SVCW Water Infrastructure Finance and 

Innovation Act (WIFIA) loans payments beginning in 2027-28 for SVCW Regional Environmental 

Sewer Conveyance Upgrade (RESCU) projects.

 Permit Fees.  Permit & Inspection Fees budget is $200,000.   These fees are budgeted

conservatively, due to the uncertain nature of their timing and the economic environment.

 Flow Equal.  The total Flow Equalization Cost Sharing with Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW)

contract expires after FY 2023-24.  SVCW has proposed extending for two months, with

optional subsequent use billed as needed.    Two months is budgeted, based on the current

rate with a 3.8% increase, based on the annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban

Consumers for San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward (Bay Area).

 Other Operating Income.  A total of $1,829,598, up from the original budget of $739,149, for

a 155% increase from the prior budget.

• Revenue from Los Altos Hills = $466,144, a 4% increase.

• 4% x 4 years, after 2% equaling over 18% in the 5-year contract.

• Revenue from Town of Woodside = $86,735, a 4% increase.

• Pass-through revenue from HACH Service Contracts = $186,300.

• Revised budget added nine months of new East Palo Alto Sanitary District (EPASD) 

contract for $ 1,090,449.

 Other Non-Operating Revenues:  The District budgets for Interest Income of $500,000.

5-8



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 6 

 
 

 

 
 

Expenditures: 

Total Operating Expenses for all funds is $37 million, representing a 26% increase from prior year and 4% 

increase from original approved FY 2024-25 budget.  Collections includes the General, Capital, and SVCW 

Funds, while the Solid Waste and Recycled Water Funds are reported separately.  Only the General Fund 

operating expense budget increased, due to the EPASD contract. 

 

Collections Expenditures: General, Capital, and SVCW Funds 

Collection expenses of $35.6 million represents a 27% increase over FY 2023-24 and 4% increase from 

original approved budget.  Detailed expenses are shown on the Expense Analysis on page 10.   The 

addition of the EPASD proposal included seven additional employees: a two person cleaning crew, two 

person CCTV crew, a maintenance worker for emergency response and U.S.A. marking, an additional 

construction inspector, and an engineer technician.  Operating expenses of $1.09 million and three 

vehicles for $715 thousand were added to support the additional staff. 

 

General Fund. 

General Fund Expenses are $13.7 million, increasing 16% from FY 2023-24 and 8% from the original 

approved budget. 

o Salaries and benefit costs are increasing 18% from FY 2023-24.  The addition of 7 full time staff 

members resulted in a 10% increase from the original approved FY 2024-25 budget. 

• Salaries increased 17%, based on new projected staffing, with  annual merit step increases 

and the 4% increase proposed in the one year Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

extension with represented employees for July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025.    

5-9



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 7 

 
• Benefits increased 17% from FY 2023-24, including 10% increase for additional staff.    

• Cafeteria benefits will be unchanged in FY 2024-25, per the new MOU.  The cafeteria 

allowance for all employees covers health, dental, and vision benefits, even while 

health benefits increased 11.8% in 2024, with an average 8% increase over the last 

three years.     

• Pension costs increase relative to salaries for covered employees.  Employer pension 

contributions are increasing an average of 0.1%, over the three pension plans.  The 

District’s average employer rate is 10.5%, factoring in the Classic rate of 13.41, Tier 

II rate of 10.15%, and PEPRA rate of 7.87%.  The employer net rate average rate is 

9.2%,  after the 1.25% employee contribution of the employer’s rate.   Employer 

pension rates will continue to decline, as 64% of employees are now in PEPRA and  

42% of Classic employees are eligible to retire.  The District does not participate in 

social security for covered employees, making the PEPRA rate just 1.67% above the 

non-PERS rate.   

o Material and Supplies is increasing 22% from FY 2023-24, including 19% for the new contract 

with EPASD..     

• Fuel costs are increasing 25%. 

• Office Expense, 9% increase. 

• Operating Supplies, 31% increase. 

• Equipment Expense decreased 14%, to $96,400.  These represent 

replacement of small tools and equipment or one-time purchases under the 

$20,000 capitalization policy.     

• CCTV Cameras, 2 at $6,500 each; Digital Radios, $20,000; Small 

Equipment; $17,300, Small Pumps and STEP & Grinder Parts, 

$21,100; and Monitoring Equipment $25,000. 

o Insurance costs are expected to increase approximately 13%; 10-15% for liability, 10-20% for 

property,  and 5% for workers’ compensation.  The District is a member of California Sanitation 

Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), which provides self-insured and excess insurance.  Final 

rates will not be available until late June 2024.  The District will continue to evaluate deductible 

options to reduce costs.  The District’s experience modification factor for workers’ compensation 

increased slightly to 0.83, from 0.8.  Below 1.0 is indicative of good claim history. 

o Contractual Services are increasing 13% from FY 2023-24.  This category includes contract 

expenses to HACH, which are passed through to customers of $186,300.  It also includes rents 

and leases.   

• Contracts expenses are increasing 8%. 

• Rents and leases are increasing 67%. 

• New Gas Monitor Program I-Net Contract, $40,000. 

• Radio airtime, increasing $10,300. 

5-10



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5 P a g e  | 8 

o Professional services, which includes printing, publications, research, and monitoring costs, are 

increasing 9%.  Professional services includes engineering, attorney fees, studies, technology 

consulting, and other outside professional services.   FY 2023-24 included one-time costs, which 

were not all completed, two software installations are carried over to FY 2024-25. 

• Engineering costs are $618,400, with $413,000 currently under contract for

project assistance, including $106,600 for on-call engineering services.

• IT Services are $501,600, a 20% increase.  Software installation costs of

$338,000 are carried over for Finance and Tax Roll software, with an

additional $50 thousand for the tax roll software, based on the latest quote.

• Health screening, safety training, and recruitment costs are $108,100.

• Printing & Publications is $91,675, a 19% increase. 

• Research and Monitoring is unchanged, at $27,600.

o Repairs and maintenance expenses include fleet, safety equipment, lift stations, and

other equipment maintenance crucial to operations and computer software and

hardware (under $20,000 capitalization limit).  Costs are increasing 9% to $704,365.

• New Cloud Based  Software: 

• Finance Enterprise, $82,000, will replace MIP Accounting and

Microix Workflow PO system, currently $13,000 annually, and

Access Cash Receipt Log.

• Tax Roll software, $35,000

• Telemetry System, $10,000

• Digital Bidding Software, $9,000

• Office 365, $6,100 and Bluebeam, $3,000

o Utilities are $297,205,  increasing 3% from FY 2023-24.  Costs in FY 2023-24 were under

budget, indicating the current budget amounts are adequate, with a 5% increase for

water and 15% increase for electricity.

o Other Operating Expenses, which includes Election expenses, Memberships, Training,

Meetings, Travel, LAFCo, and miscellaneous expenses, are increasing 23% to $531,481.

• Election expense of $70,000 is included in FY2024-25, for bi-annual elections

for three current board members reaching the end of their current term.

• Training, meetings, and travel are increasing 18%, up 7% from original

approved budget, for new and promoted staff.  Costs were original increased

as in-person training resumes and costs increased for safety training.

 Capital Fund Depreciation.  Depreciation of $3.3 million, increased 3% for additional vehicles from the 

FY 2023-24 annual budget.   Three vehicles were added in the Revised Budget for $715,000, 

depreciated over the five year contract with EPASD.

5-11



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 9 

 

 SVCW Operating Expenses/Debt.  This includes contributions and debt payments for the benefit 

of SVCW.  Total Expenditures are $ 18,540,559, a 42.7% increase for the District’s share of SVCW 

budget in FY 2024-25.  SVCW expenditures represent 60% of the Collection Operating Expenses, 

excluding capital and depreciation.  The District holds a 22.66% share of SVCW’s Net Position 

according to the SVCW’s annual Unaudited Analysis of Net Position, as of June 30, 2024.  SVCW 

is reported as a separate Fund, to better identify direct District Operations and those for SVCW.  

o SVCW Operating expenses is $6,579,079, a 7% increase.  Monthly payments also include 

revenue-funded capital, which is increasing 212% to $402,502 and SVCW Reserve 

contributions are decreasing 42% to $939,400.  

o SVCW Debt payments are $6,963,243 for 2018 bonds, 2021A&B bonds, WWTP SRF loan, 

and RESCU loans, increasing 37% from prior year.  In 2024-25, three additional SRF loans 

begin repayment for an additional $1.7 million.  WIFIA loans will begin repayment in 

2027-28 for an approximate $3 million increase.   

o SVCW has added $3,656,334 for cash in lieu of additional debt.  Additional cash was 

originally scheduled for FY 2025-26. 

o A Debt Service Reserve was initiated in June 2023, with the District’s share $1.43 million, 

to fulfill the SVCW’s Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) requirement of 1.2 times, 

with four SRF loans on a five-year look-forward debt coverage test covenant.  These 

funds are held with SVCW and may be used to offset future debt when released. 

 

 
Change in Net Position: 

The Collections Budget: General, Capital, and SVCW Funds, Net Operating Loss is $35,969, with a Net 

Change in Position of $714,031.  This is the estimated amount that will be transferred to the Capital 

budget for capital projects.  

The Combined Net Operating Income is a loss of $1,456,539 for all Funds, with a total positive Change 

in Net Position of $478,199 for FY 2024-25, a $818 increase from the original approved budget.   

  

5-12



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 10 

 

Budget 

Collections Budget 

Fiscal Year 20243-25 
Expense Analysis 

 

 
 

  

 Unaudited 

Actuals 
 Collections 

Budget 

 Approved 

Collections 

Budget 

 Revised 

Collections 

Budget 

 Budget 

Variance 
% Var

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25  

Operating Expenses

Salaries & Wages 4,900,964                 4,917,723 5,143,007 5,758,631                      840,907 17%

Employee Benefits 1,817,237                 2,029,090                2,246,352                2,380,683                351,593                    17%

Directors- Fees 46,540                      45,800                     93,600                     93,600                                            47,800 104%

Election Expense -                            70,000 70,000                                            70,000 

Gasoline, Oil & Fuel 90,337                      128,000 128,000 160,025                                          32,025 25%

Insurance 277,914                    287,900 322,560 325,058                                          37,158 13%

Memberships 49,007                      88,000 88,741 96,241                                              8,241 9%

Office Expense 36,856                      48,700 50,550 53,100                                              4,400 9%

Operating Supplies 403,713                    462,700 493,850 607,387                                        144,687 31%

Contract Services 619,781                    849,300 901,222 919,275                                          69,975 8%

Professional Services 649,707                    1,364,900 1,466,400 1,482,900                                     118,000 9%

Printing & Publications 38,529                      77,200 78,700 91,675                                            14,475 19%

Rents & Leases 49,004                      67,100 108,430 112,345                                          45,245 67%

Repairs & Maintenance 474,360                    646,100 694,615 704,365                                          58,265 9%

Research & Monitoring -                            27,600 27,600 27,600                                                    -   

Training, Meetings & Travel 74,496                      145,300 160,800 171,900                                          26,600 18%

Utilities 249,844                    288,000                   295,180                   297,205                   9,205                        3%

Other Operating Expenses 80,646                      281,400                   288,860                   288,860                                            7,460 3%

 Equipment Expense 91,639                      112,400 96,400 96,400                   (16,000)                     -14%

Pension Expense -                            50,000                     50,000                     50,000                                                    -   

OPEB Expense 51,790                      25,000                     40,600                     40,600                                            15,600 62%

 Solid Waste Overhead Allocation (62,600)                     (62,600)                  (65,820)                  (65,820)                                         (3,220) 5%

 Recycled Water Overhead Allocation (26,733)                     (21,525)                  (29,700)                  (29,700)                                         (8,175) 38%

Depreciation 3,066,761                 3,200,000                3,200,000                3,307,250                                     107,250 3%

     Total WBSD Operating Expenses 12,979,792               15,058,088            15,949,947            17,039,578                              1,981,490 13%

  

SVCW - Operating Fund 6,117,648                 6,117,648                6,579,079                6,579,079                                     461,431 8%

SVCW - Capital Contributions 128,832                    128,832                   402,502                   402,502                                        273,670 212%

 SVCW - Operating Reserves 48,576                      48,576                   -                         -                                              (48,576) -100%

 SVCW - Capital Reserves 805,200                    805,200                 939,400                 939,400                                      134,200 17%

SVCW - Line of Credit 51,936                      51,936                     -                           -                                                (51,936) -100%

 SVCW - Debt Service Reserves 760,000                    762,622                 -                         -                                            (762,622) -100%

 SVCW - 2018 Bond  1,836,301                 1,837,963              1,834,963              1,834,963                                     (3,000) 0%

SVCW: 2021 Bonds ($55.6m) 2,728,946                 2,731,306                2,742,354                2,742,354                                       11,048 0%

SVCW - SRF WWTP Debt C-06-5216-120 506,765                    506,765                   506,765                   506,765                                                   0 0%

SVCW - SRF Debt C-06-8069-110 -                           143,482                   143,482                                        143,482 

SVCW - SRF RESCU 1,735,680                1,735,680                                  1,735,680 

SVCW - Cash in Lieu of Debt -                           3,656,334                3,656,334                                  3,656,334 

 -                            

      Total External Operating Expenses 12,984,204               12,990,848            18,540,559            18,540,559            5,549,711                 42.7%

 Total Operating Expenses 25,963,996               28,048,936              34,490,506              35,580,137                                7,531,201 27%

5-13



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 11 

 
Capital Fund: 

The Capital Fund is financed with any Net Increase in Position from the Collection Operations revenue, 
Connection Charges by customers, and Interest Income.  The District had $43.5 million Capital Budget 
balance available as of June 30, 2024.  There is $27.4 million in budgeted capital expenditures, resulting 
in an ending balance of $16.8 million after FY 2024-25 for future capital expenditures. 

 

Capital Fund Revenue: 
Connection Fees of $250,000 are budgeted; no change from FY 2023-24.   

Capital Fund Expenses: 
Total Capital Expenditures budget for FY 2024-25 is $27,396,500; a 15% increase from FY 2023-24.  

$11,112,784 is carried over from FY 2023-24.  Three additional vehicles were added for the EPASD 

contract for $715,000.  A detailed schedule of Capital Expenditures is included on page 13-14.   

Capital Assets: 

 

 Administration.  $80,000 is budgeted for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) 

replacement for the administration building. 

 Collection Facilities - Buildings.   The budget for Collection includes FERRF Improvements and 

Allowance for Unanticipated Capital Expenditures of $600,000, no increase from the FY 2024-

25 budget.   

 

 

Unaudited

Actuals Budget 

Approved 

Budget 

 Revised

 Budget 

Capital	Budget	Summary FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25

Transfer from Operations 4,634,502                 4,818,703           (36,787)                (35,969)                

Interest Income 3,528,764                 500,000               500,000               500,000               

Connection Charges 617,021                     250,000               250,000               250,000               

Capital Expenditures (9,475,114)               (23,913,000)       (26,681,500)       (27,396,500)       

Change in Capital Asset Fund (694,827)                   (18,344,297)       (25,968,287)       (26,682,469)       

Beginning Fund Balance 44,218,570               44,218,570         43,523,744         43,523,744         

Capital Budget, Ending Balance 43,523,744               25,874,274         17,555,457         16,841,275         

 Unaudited 

Actuals 

 Capital

 Budget Approved Budget 

 Revised

 Budget 
% Var

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25  

Capital Expenditures

Administration -                               173,000                80,000                  80,000                  (93,000)                 -54%

Collection Facil ities -                               600,000                600,000                600,000                -                         0%

Vehicles & Equpment 120,249                      445,000                813,000                1,528,000             1,083,000             243%

Pump Stations 47,715                        440,000                1,639,000             1,639,000             1,199,000             273%

Subsurface Lines & Other Capital 5,365,192                  100,000                100,000                100,000                -                         0%

Construction Projects 3,941,958                  22,155,000          23,449,500          23,449,500          1,294,500             6%

Capital Adjustments (1,112,879)                 

Total Capital Expenditures             8,362,235                  23,913,000          26,681,500          27,396,500          3,483,500             15%

 Budget 

Variance 

5-14



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 12 

 

 Vehicle & Equipment.  The budget for vehicles and equipment is $1,528,000, a 243% increase 

from the FY 2023-24 budget.  $715,000 was added for three additional vehicles since the 

original approved budget. 

o Equipment:  $453,000 for a new closed circuit television (CCTV) unit and equipment. 

o Vehicles:   

 Electric Vehicle, $80,000. 

 Pipe Hunter / Jetter, $280,000. 

 Ford Maverick, $35,000 for new Construction Inspector 

 US Jetter, $200,000 for additional maintenance crew 

 CCTV Unit, $480,000 for additional CCTV crew 

o Contribution to Equipment Replacement Reserve:  Increased 3% to $413,625. 

 Pump Stations.  The budget is increasing 273%, to $1,639,000.   

o Additional Pump & Valve Replacement, $40,000. 

o Pump Station Telemetry, $560,000, with $332,050 carried over from FY 2023-24. 

 Subsurface Lines & Other Capital.   

o No change in $100,000 for Manhole Raising on paving projects. 

o Subsurface lines projects often scan fiscal year, so are budgeted in construction in 

progress. 

 Construction in Progress (CIP).  These are new construction projects that are recorded separately 

and capitalized when completed.  CIP is not depreciated until completed.  $23,449,500 is 

budgeted for CIP, with $11,112,784 estimated carryover from FY 2023-24 capital budget and 

$12,336,716 in new projects. 

o Levee Project: 

 $5 million budget, with $4,908,252 carried over  from FY 2023-24. 

 The District received a $4,884,112 grant from the National Fish and Wildlife 

Foundation for the construction of a living shoreline.  These are matching funds 

requiring a 112% contribution by the District ($5.5 million). 

o Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Engineering, $1,050,000. 

 Carryover $350,000 from FY 2023-24. 

 New funding $700,000. 

o Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Construction, $17,399,500. 

 Carryover $5,854,532 from FY 2023-24. 

 New funding $11,544,968. 

 Resource Recovery.  Recycled water facilities projects recorded under the Recycled Water Fund. 

 
 

 
  

5-15



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 13 

 
 

Revised Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

Capital Fund 
 

 
 
 

Actual  Budget 
 Approved 

Budget 
 Revised Budget 

Capital Expenditure - Detail 6/30/2024 FY 2023/24  FY 2024/25 FY 2024/25 

 Plant & Administration

District Office HVAC System 80,000 80,000

District Office Exterior

Server Replacement Program 23,000 0 0

Software Purchases 150,000 0 0

10 Year Master Plan 0 0 0

Write-Off Assets (385,027)

Total Administration (385,027) 173,000 80,000 80,000

Collection Facilities - FERRF/Buildings

FERRF Improvements 0 500,000 500,000 500,000

Allowance For Unanticipated Capital Expenditures 0 100,000 100,000 100,000

Write-Off Assets (49,012)

Subtotal Collection Facilities (49,012) 600,000 600,000 600,000

Equipment Replacement - Funded From The Equipment Replacement Fund

Equipment

CCTV Equipment: Transporter, Track Module, Camera 28,000 28,000

CCTV Unit 425,000 425,000

Vehicles

Dump Truck (Deferred since 2020 to 2023-24) 250,000 0 0

Jet Truck, Superduty F550 4x4, 1/2in Jetter

Combo Vacuum/Jetter Truck - Jetter Truck

Electric Vehicles (2 Add per BOD, 5/10/23) 135,000 80,000 80,000

Pipe Hunter / Jetter 280,000                280,000                

Mini Excavator 57,452 60,000

2023 Ford E-Transit Van 6/2024 62,798

Ford Maverick 35,000

US Jetter 200,000

CCTV Unit 480,000

Total Equipment Replacement 120,249 445,000 813,000 1,528,000

Sales of Vehicles (561,526)

Net Vehicles & Equipment Expenese (441,276) 445,000 813,000 1,528,000

    Equipment Replacement Reserve (401,577) (401,577) (401,577) (413,625)

Net Vehicles & Equipment Activity (842,854) 43,423 411,423 1,114,375

 Subsurface Lines & Other Capital

 Pump Stations

Pump Equipment Replacement Program 2,200 40,000 40,000 40,000

Pump Station Telemetry 45,515 400,000 227,950 205,515

Pump Station Telemetry (carryover) 332,050 354,485

Willow, University, and Illinois Forceman Replacements 1,039,000 1,039,000

Pump Station Repair & Replacements

Write-Off: Assets (117,315)

Total Pump Stations (69,600) 440,000 1,639,000 1,639,000

Other Subsurface Lines

Manhole Raising (Paving Projects) 0 100,000 100,000 100,000

Meta:  MP Community Center Upsize RW Svc Line (337,741)

Completed CIP:  North Bay / Ringwood / Gilbert 5,702,932

Total Subsurface Lines & Other Capital 5,365,192 100,000 100,000 100,000

Total Pump Station, Subsurface Lines, & Other Capital (69,600) 540,000 1,739,000 1,739,000

5-16



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 14 

 
Revised Budget 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 
Capital Fund 

 

 
 

 
  

Actual Budget  Budget Budget 

Capital Expenditure - Detail 6/30/2024 FY 2023/24 FY 2024/25 FY 2024/25

Construction in Progress

Levee Survey & GPS Update 60,000

Levee Improvement Project 3,000,000 148,214 148,214

Levee Improvement Project (Carryover) 5,148,214 7,000,000 4,851,786 4,851,786

Corporate Yard Construction

Corporate Yard Renovation Design (Carryover) 350,000

Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Design & Engineering

 Construction Projects Environmental Review 20,000

Spot Repair Design-High Frequency List 350,000                -                         

Spot Repair Design-High Frequency List (Carryover) 350,000                350,000                

Pipeline Replacement Design 350,000                478,350                

Pipeline Replacement Design (Carryover) 128,350                 350,000                350,000                221,650                

Stowe Lane Design -                         

Stowe Lane Design (Carryover) 179,650                 200,000                

Willow Pump Station Rehabilitation Design 153,723                 200,000                

Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Construction

Stowe Lane 3,000,000            3,000,000            -                         

Stowe Lane (Carryover) -                          -                         3,000,000            

Willow Pump Station Rehabilitation 1,000,000            1,700,000            -                         

Willow Pump Station Rehabilitation (Carryover) 700,000                -                         1,700,000            

 Misc Point Repairs-High Freq. List Repairs (LAMP 1) 1,818,144             2,325,000            10,214,444          10,214,444          

Misc Point Repairs-High Freq. List Repairs (Carryover) 1,621,800             2,000,000            885,056                885,056                

Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvements -                          494,709                1,348,603            595,010                

Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvements (Carryover) 595,010                 1,105,291            251,398                1,004,990            

Other Projects

Total Construction in Progress 9,644,890 22,155,000          23,449,500          23,449,500          

Completed Projects:

North Bay / Ringwood / Gilbert (5,702,932)

Total Construction in Progress 3,941,958 22,155,000 23,449,500 23,449,500

Other Capital Adjustments (561,526)

Total Capital Fund Expenditures 8,362,235 23,913,000 26,681,500 27,396,500

5-17



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 15 

 
  

 

 
 
 

Revised 5 Year Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

Capital Fund 
 

Budget Budget Budget Budget  Budget Budget 

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29

Capital Expenditures

 Administration 173,000 80,000 0 0 0 0

Collection Facilities 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000

Vehicles & Equpment 445,000 1,528,000 300,000 389,000 571,000 935,000

Pump Stations 440,000 1,639,000 1,258,000 2,317,000 40,000 200,000

Subsurface Lines & Other Capital 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Construction Projects 22,155,000 23,449,500 23,421,600 18,515,700 19,780,500 9,878,400

Total Capital Expenditures             23,913,000 27,396,500 25,679,600 21,921,700 21,091,500 11,713,400

Recycled Water Capital Expenditures

 Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility 2,450,000 0 0 0 0 0

Bayfront Recycled Water Facility 17,299,485 25,500,000 25,450,000 2,328,600 2,328,600 2,328,600

Total Recycled Water Capital Expenditures 19,749,485 25,500,000 25,450,000 2,328,600 2,328,600 2,328,600

Total Capital Expenditures 43,662,485 52,896,500 51,129,600 24,250,300 23,420,100 14,042,000

Grant Funding

National Fish and Wildlife Foundation Grant, living shoreline. 4,884,112

California State Water Recycling Funding Program (WRFP) 5,000,000

Total Grant Funding -                           4,884,112              5,000,000              -                           -                           -                           

Net Capital Expenditures             23,913,000            22,512,388            25,679,600            21,921,700            21,091,500            11,713,400            

Net Recycled Water Capital Expenditures 19,749,485            25,500,000            20,450,000            2,328,600              2,328,600              2,328,600              

5-18



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 16 

 
Reserves: 

The District reserves funds to protect cash flow between sewer service fee payments from the county, 

maintain fiscal stability, and reserve for future projects.  The District has six individual investment 

accounts to reserve funds for various aspects of operations, plus two money market accounts, including 

the two accounts which are restricted and hold deposits from Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club 

(SHGCC) for the SRF loan on the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility (SHRWF).  In addition, the 

District has two checking accounts and holds funds in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which are 

liquid and available to fund current Operations and Capital Projects. 

 

Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

Reserve Contributions 
 

 
 

Reserves: 
The District currently has four separate investment reserve accounts maintained to support the goals of the 

District, along with reserves held in LAIF, the Equipment Replacement Reserve held in a money market 

account, a Pension Trust, and the restricted Recycled Water SRF Reserve.  Annual contributions are made 

in accordance with the Board approved budget in order to reach the target balances for each reserve.  In 

addition, the Operating Reserve is set at six months of operating expenses, based on the annual budget. 

 

 Reserves.  Total reserve designations and transfers are $3.6 million. 

o Operating Reserve:  Designate $3,220,785. 

 Six months of operations provides cash flow between July and December, when 

the first sewer service charges are received. 

 Operating Reserves will be held in LAIF, where they are available for cash flow. 

o Vehicle & Equip Replacement Reserve:  $413,625, increased 3% annually. 

 Restricted Reserves. 
o Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) Trust: 

 Retirement:  $50,000 to reserve for possible CalPERS unfunded liability. 

 Other Post-Employment Benefits:  $25,000 to keep pace with increasing 

liability. 

Reserve Contributions
 Current Target 

 Actual YTD 

3/31/2024 

 Projected 

6/30/24 

 Budget 

FY 2023-24 

 Budget 

FY 2024-25 

Collection Reserves

Operating Reserves Transfers (6mo/Ops) 14,024,468             2,913,031               2,913,031               2,913,031               3,220,785               

Rate Stabilization/Bond Reserve 10,000,000             -                           -                           -                           -                           

Treatment Plant Reserve 12,000,000             -                           -                           -                           -                           

Restricted Reserves

PARS Irrevocable Trust - Retirement 50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     50,000                     

PARS Irrevocable Trust - OPEB 25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     25,000                     

Capital Fund Reserves

Capital Project Reserves Transfers 8,000,000               20,000,000            20,000,000            -                           -                           

Emergency Capital Reserves Transfer 6,000,000               -                           -                           -                           -                           

Equipment Replacement Reserves Transfer -                           401,577                  401,577                  413,625                  

Recycled Water Fund Reserves

Recycled Water Cash Flow Reserve 8,000,000               -                           -                           -                           -                           

Recycled Water SRF Reserve - Restricted 1,475,734               -                           

Total Reserve Contributions 59,500,202             22,988,031            23,389,608            3,389,608               3,709,410               

5-19



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 17 

 
 
 

Solid Waste: 
The Solid Waste Fund has a projected net increase of $6,380 for FY 2024-25, a $4,370 increase from FY 

2023-24.  The Net Position is estimated at  $899,905 through FY 2024-25. 

o Solid Waste Fund Revenue.  Franchise fees are received from Recology, which manages solid 

waste collection for the District.  The budget is estimated at a 12% increase from FY 2023-24.  

Recology may have other changes, which are uncertain at this time; additional costs 

associated with implementation of California’s Short-Lived Climate Pollutant (SLCP) Reduction 

Strategy, SB1383 and disposal costs at the Shoreway Environmental Center. 

o Solid Waste Fund Expense.  Allocated expenses for the Solid Waste program of $116,920 is 

budgeted for rate studies, annual notification mailing, and overhead allocation, a combined 

8% increase.  

Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 
Solid Waste Fund 

 
 

 
YTD 

3/31/2024

Projected 

6/30/24

 Budget 

FY 2023-24 

 Budget 

FY 2024-25 

 Budget 

Variance 
% Var

Operating Income

Franchises 86,077 114,769 110,000 123,300 13,300 12%

Total Income 86,077 114,769 110,000 123,300 13,300 12%

Expenditures

Rate Studies 28,314 28,314 42,000 44,200 2,200 5%

Mailings 3,600 3,600 5,000 5,300 300 6%

Public Relations 0 0 1,500 1,600 100 7%

Overhead Expense Allocation - General 46,950 62,600 59,490 65,820 6,330 11%

Total Allocated Operating Expense 78,864 94,514 107,990 116,920 8,930 8%

Non-Operating Income & Expense

Surplus 317,824 317,824 0 0 0 0%

Change in Net Position 325,037 338,079 2,010 6,380 4,370 217%

Solid Waste Fund Beginning Balance 555,446 555,446 555,446 893,525

Solid Waste Fund Balance 880,483 893,525 557,456 899,905

5-20



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 18 

 
Recycled Water: 

Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility  

The Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility (SHRWF) was completed in FY 2021-22, for a project total of 

$22,647,052.  $22,267,257 was received from the State Revolving Fund, including a $5,259,800 Water 

Recycling Funding Program Construction Grant and a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan of $17,117,420.  The 

District assumed full management of the facility beginning January 27, 2021.   

 

The SHRWF budget is based on the approved 2024 calendar year operations and maintenance budget 

agreed upon with Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC) representatives.  The detailed SHRWF 

statement is included on page 18. 

 

o Revenue. Revenue is recognized as non-operating income, as all costs of the facility are paid 

by the District and ultimately reimbursed by Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC).  

The District provides SHGCC with a projected budget in January 2024, which estimated annual 

operations and maintenance and is billed in twelve equal monthly installments.  The 

difference is reconciled annually and billed or credited to SHGCC. 

o Expense.  Total Operating expenditures are estimated at $1,426,950 for FY 2024-25, including 

$755,000 in depreciation of the recycled water facility. 

• Operating Expenses were $671,950. 

• Direct District expenses budget is $642,250, 20% higher than FY 2023-24.  

Operating costs are expected to return to normal after SHGCC shut down 

in FY 2023-24 for renovations, requiring less water.   

• Indirect Administration is $29,700, 27% higher than FY 2023-24, as these 

fees are based on direct costs. 

• Depreciation is expensed on the straight-line method, $755,000 annually. 

o Non-Operating Income & Expenses. 

• Non-Operating Income 

• Income for FY 2024-25 is $671,950, which represents the calendar year 

budget agreement with SHGCC for operations and maintenance.    

• $1,600 in estimated interest income on the SRF deposit. 

• Non-Operating Expenses 

• Although $662,911 represents the principal and interest on the SRF loan 

payment, only the interest of $151,112 is expensed.  The principal amount 

reduces the loan balance. 

o Contributions. 

• SHGCC pays $662,900 in ten equal installments over ten months for the SRF loan 

payments, due March 30 each year.  Recorded as a contribution by SHGCC. 

 

 

 

5-21



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 19 

 
West Bay Sanitary District 

Recycled Water Fund 
Sharron Heights Recycled Water Facility 

Budget  
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

 

 
 

 

Fund Expenditures - Detail

Actual YTD 

3/31/2024

Projected 

6/30/24

Budget 

FY 2023/24

Budget 

FY 2024/25

Budget 

Variance % Var

Operating Expense

 Salaries & Wages 80,991 107,988 85,000 130,000 45,000 35%

Employee Benefits 43,930 58,574 35,000 40,000 5,000 13%

Indirect Labor 5,740 7,654 0 0 -                     

Overtime 13,088 13,088 20,000 25,000 5,000                 20%

Standby 14,820 19,760 20,000 21,000 1,000                 5%

 Total Salaries, Wages & Benefits 158,570 207,064 160,000 216,000 56,000              26%

Other Operating Expense

 Fuel 0 0 0 0 0

Insurance 46 61 40,000 46,000 6,000 13%

 Memberships 41,052 54,736 0 0 0

Office Expense 0 0 0 0 0

 Operating Supplies 0 0 38,200 45,000 6,800 15%

Contractual Services 10,824 14,431 0 0 0

 Professional Services 11,926 15,902 11,000 25,000 14,000 56%

Printing & Publications 11,601 15,467 0 0 0

 Rents & Leases 0 0 0 0 0

Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 25,000 25,000 0 0%

 Research & Monitoring 11,997 15,995 15,000 23,000 8,000 35%

Training, Meetings & Travel 13,149 17,532 0 0 0

 Utilities 0 0 209,250 249,250 40,000 16%

Licenses & Permits 161,806 215,741 12,500 13,000 500 4%

Other Operating Expenses 4,471 5,961 0 0 0

Subtotal Operating Expenses 425,441 562,891 510,950 642,250 131,300 20%

Administrative Expense 444,749 592,999 21,525 29,700 8,175 27.5%

 Direct Expenditures 870,190 1,155,890 532,475 671,950 139,475 21%

Depreciation 822,200 1,096,267 755,000 755,000 0 0%

 Total Operating Expense 1,692,390 2,252,157 1,287,475 1,426,950 139,475 10%

Non-Operating Income & Expense 

Other Non-Operating Income

SHGCC O&M Revenue 503,433 671,245 532,475 671,950 139,475 21%

Interest Income, Gains on Investments 1,257 1,676               1,600 1,600 0 0%

Total Non-Operating Income 504,691 672,921 534,075 673,550 139,475 21%

Other Non-Operating Expense

SRF Loan Payment - Principal (506,732) (506,732) (506,732) (511,799) (5,067) 1%

SRF Loan Payment - Interest (156,179) (156,179) (156,179) (151,112)         5,067 -3%

Total Non-Operating Expense (156,179) (156,179) (156,179) (151,112) 5,067 -3%

Total Non-Operating Income & Expense 348,511 516,742 377,896 522,438 144,542 28%

Contributions

SHGCC Contributions: SRF Loan 397,747 596,620 662,900 662,900 0 0%

Net Change in Position (946,132) (1,138,795) (246,679) (241,612) 5,067 -2%

5-22



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 20 

 
Recycled Water Capital Projects: 

West Bay Sanitary District 
Recycled Water Fund 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

 

 
 

Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility  

The SHRWF has two capital projects. 

 Avy Altscheul Pump Station (Avy PS), which is expected to be completed in FY 2023-24. 

o Will provide additional flow to SHRWF 

o All costs reimbursed by SHGCC to District 

 Solar Project Lease, which has been delayed. 

o SHGCC is pursuing a lease for solar power for the SHRWF through a lease agreement. 

o The District owns the SHRWF, so the lease will be in the District’s name 

o All costs reimbursed by SHGCC to District 

	
Bayfront Recycled Water Project  

The Bayfront Project has a $15,750,000 capital budget for the recycled water facility. 

 Project Management 

 Recycled Water Facility 

 Reclaimed Water Pipelines to Menlo Park Pump Station 

 

	 	

Budget YTD Projected Budget  Budget  Budget 

Recycled Water Capital Expenditures FY 2022/23 3/31/2024 6/30/2024 FY 2023/24 FY 2024/25 Variance % Var

Recycled Water Fund

Bayfront Recycled Water Facility 1,000,000 554,067 950,890 16,750,000 -                         

Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (Carryover) 15,750,000          (1,000,000) 94%

Bayfront - Reclaimed Water Pipelines 1,250,000 150,593 1,105,291 549,485 (549,485) -100%

O'Brien - Reclaimed Water Pipelines * 39,273 106,560 2,500,000

Menlo Park Community Center: Upsize RW Service Line 303,967 303,967 -                     

Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility (SHRWF)

SHRWF - Avy Pump Station 500,000 733,380 733,380 766,121

SHRWF - Avy PS (Carryover) 183,879 (950,000) 0%

SHRWF - Solar Project Lease 1,500,000 -                          1,500,000 -                         (1,500,000) -100%

Recycled Water Facilities 4,250,000 1,781,280 3,200,087 22,249,485 15,750,000 (3,999,485) -0.18

5-23



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t –  B u d g e t  F Y  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  P a g e  | 21 

 
	

West Bay Sanitary District 
Budget 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 
By Fund 

 

 

 General Fund  Capital Fund 
 Silicon Valley 

Clean Water Fund 
Solid Waste Fund 

 Recycled Water 

Fund 

 Revised 

Combined Budget 

FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25

 

Operating Revenues

    Sewer Service Charges 33,445,360           -                      -                      -                      -                        33,445,360          

    Permit & Inspection Fees 200,000                -                      -                      -                      -                        200,000               

    Flow Equalization 69,210                  -                      -                      -                      -                        69,210                 

    Other Operating Revenue 1,829,598             -                      -                      123,300              -                        1,952,898            

Operating Revenues 35,544,168           -                        -                        123,300                -                        35,667,468           

Operating Expenses

    Salaries & Benefits 8,323,513             -                      -                      -                      216,000                8,539,513            

    Materials & Supplies 916,912                -                      -                      -                      45,000                  961,912               

    Insurance 325,058                -                      -                      -                      46,000                  371,058               

    Contract Services 1,031,620             -                      -                      -                      -                        1,031,620            

    Professional Services 1,602,175             -                      -                      51,100                48,000                  1,701,275            

    Repairs & Maintenance 704,365                -                      -                      -                      25,000                  729,365               

    Utilities 297,205                -                      -                      -                      249,250                546,455               

    Other Operating Expenses 531,481                -                      -                      65,820                42,700                  640,001               

    Depreciation -                       3,307,250           -                      -                      755,000                4,062,250            

     Total WBSD Operating Expenses 13,732,328           3,307,250           -                      116,920              1,426,950             18,583,448          

     Sewage Treatment Plant (SVCW) 18,540,559         18,540,559          

     Total Operating Expenses 13,732,328           3,307,250           18,540,559         116,920              1,426,950             37,124,007          

Operating Income (Loss) 21,811,840           (3,307,250)            (18,540,559)          6,380                    (1,426,950)            (1,456,539)            

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

   Investment Income 500,000                -                      -                      -                      1,000                    501,000               

   Interest Expense -                       -                      -                      -                      (151,112)               (151,112)              

   Other Non-Operating Income -                       -                      -                      -                      671,950                671,950               

   Other Non-Operating Expenses -                       -                      -                      -                      -                        -                       

    Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 500,000                -                      -                      -                      521,838                1,021,838            

Change in Net Position by Fund 22,311,840           (3,307,250)          (18,540,559)        6,380                  (905,112)               (434,701)              

Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) -                       -                       

Capital Contributions  

   Recycled Water Fund 662,900                662,900               

   Capital Fund: Connection Fees 250,000                250,000                

Change in Net Position by Fund 22,311,840           (3,057,250)            (18,540,559)          6,380                    (242,212)               478,199                

Beginning Net Position (Budget) 55,409,251           94,202,030           16,500,690           893,525                13,391,030           180,396,525         

Prior Period Adjustment -                        -                        -                        

Ending Net Position 77,721,091           91,144,780           (2,039,869)            899,905                13,148,818           180,874,724         

5-24



WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
 
 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Debra Fisher, Finance Manager 

 
Subject: Consider Approving FY 2023-24 Financial Statements,  
 Ending June 30, 2024 
 
 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

Background 

Attached for the Board’s review is the District’s Unaudited Financial Statements for the year ending June 

30, 2024.   The Statement of Net Position and   Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes  in Net 

Position  are  prepared  in  accordance with  the  policies  and  procedures  for  California  special  districts, 

conforming  to  generally  accepted  accounting  principles  and  as  prescribed  by  the  Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board.  Additional tables and statements are provided to better view the primary 

operations  and  other  activities;  General,  Capital,  Treatment  Plan,  Solid Waste,  and  Recycled Water 

Funds.  Capital expenditures are detailed to provide transparency to the board and public for the use of 

funds for capital assets, which is critical to maintain and improve the District’s infrastructure. 

 

Fiscal Impact 

 

The District had $199.2 million in total assets as of June 30, 2024, with total liabilities of $20.5 million, 

for a Net Position of $180.4 million.   

The District recognized gross Revenue of $40.7 million and gross Expenditures of $31.3 million, for a 

combined $9.4 million increased Net Position in all Funds.   

The District recognized $10.9 million in capital project expenditures; $8.36 million for collection assets 

and $2.58 million in recycled water projects. 

6-1



 

 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

 

 
 

Collections; General, Capital, & Treatment Plant Funds: 

General, Capital, and Treatment Plant Funds are combined to show total collection system operations.  

Operating Revenue was $33.9 million, 100.3% of the annual budget.  Operating Expense was $26 million, 

93% of the annual budget.  This includes direct Operating Expenses of $9.9 million, 84% of the annual 

budget, Capital Depreciation of $3.1 million, and Sewer Treatment Plant expense and debt, managed by 

Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) of $13 million, 100% of the annual budget.  SVCW accounts for 57% 

of total operating expenses, excluding depreciation.  The Net Operating Income for Collection operations 

was a net increase of $7.9 million for the fiscal year.  

Non‐Operating Revenues and Expenses of $1.7 million net  increase,  from  Interest  Income, Gains, and 

Losses on Investments, less investment fees and loss on the District’s net position with SVCW.   $617 

thousand in Connection fees are recognized as Capital Contributions and are applied to system capacity 

projects.  Collection has an $8.8 million increase in Net Position.  

Increases in the Net Position are transferred to the Capital budget for capital asset maintenance and 

improvement.  The Capital Budget, funds available for capital improvement and maintenance, was  $43.5 

million, as of June 30, 2024, with $14.8 million in capital projects carried over to the subsequent year.   

Solid Waste Fund: 

The Solid Waste Fund recognized $120 thousand in Franchise Fees, 104% of the annual budget, from 

Recology, which manages solid waste collection for the District. 

Solid Waste Expenditures of $94  thousand, 83% of  the annual budget, was  recognized.    The budget 

includes rate studies, annual notification mailing, and overhead allocation.  A surplus of $317.8 thousand 

from 2022 was  received  in  January  2024.  The  Solid Waste  Fund  increased $343  thousand,  to  a Net 

Position of $899 thousand.   

Recycled Water Fund: 

The Recycled Water Fund includes the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility (SHRWF), the Bayfront 

Recycled Water Facility, and any recycled water design and pipe installation.  All income in this fund is 

recognized as Non‐Operating.  The District recognized $1.7 million in total expenses and a net positive 

$778 thousand in Non‐Operating Income and Expense.  The District recognized $941 thousand in Capital 

Contributions, for a $288.5 thousand increase in Net Position. 

 

6-2



 

 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

 

SHRWF had Operating Expenditures of $1.37 million,  including $755  thousand  in depreciation. Non‐

Operating Revenue from Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC) of $646 thousand was recognized 

for operations and maintenance (O&M).  SHGCC pays the estimated O&M in equal monthly installments, 

with a reconciliation by calendar year.  $69 thousand was recognized for the 2023 O&M reconciliation.   

The Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BFRWF) had $63 thousand in uncapitalized expenditures.  Meta 

contributed  $344.6  thousand  in  capital  contributions,  representing  43.3% of  the BFRWF outsourced 

project management. 

The District recognized $288 thousand in interest, net of gains,  loss, and fees on the Recycled Water 

Cash Flow Reserve.  The District received a State of California Recycled Water Planning Grant of $150 

thousand for the Woodside Recycled Water Facility, which was credit to Menlo County Club, who funded 

the $330 thousand in expenses on this project.  

Financial Statements Summary: 

The following is a summary of the Statement of Changes in Revenue, Expenses, and Net Position, for 

the prior year ending June 30, 2023 and the year ending June 30, 2024, compared to the approved budget 

for fiscal year 2023‐24.     

 

 

Recommendation 

The Finance Manager  recommends  the Board approve  the  Fiscal Year 2023‐24 Unaudited Financial 

Statements, ending June 30, 2024. 

 

 

Attached:  Financial Report FY 2023‐24 

 

Statement of Revenue, Expense, & Change in Net Position

FY 2023‐24 FY 2022‐23 Change Percentage

Operating Revenues 34,027,074               32,096,441               1,930,633                  6%

Operating Expenses (14,505,450)              (13,507,324)              (998,125)                    7%

Sewage Treatment Plant (SVCW) (12,984,204)              (12,846,366)              (137,838)                    1%

Operating Income (Loss) 6,537,421                  5,742,751                  794,669                     14%

Non‐Operating Rev / Exp 2,805,959                  2,784,843                  21,116                       1%

Income Before Contributions & Special Items 9,343,379                  8,527,594                  815,785                     10%

Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) (1,489,456)                (4,912,677)                3,423,221                 

Recycled Water Fund: Capital  Contribution 941,226                     1,146,513                  (205,286)                    ‐18%

Capital Fund: Connection Fees 617,021                     277,426                     339,596                     122%

Change in Net Position 9,412,171                  5,038,855                  4,373,316                  87%

Prior Period Adjustment ‐                              6,005,723                  (6,005,723)                ‐100%

Change in Net Position ‐ Adjusted 9,412,171                  11,044,578               (1,632,407)                ‐15%

6-3



 

 

 

West	Bay	Sanitary	District

	
	

Unaudited	Financial	Statements	

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024	

Year	Ending		

June	30,	2024 

 

 

  

6-4



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 2 

 

 

 

Financial	Report	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024	

 
 
The West Bay Sanitary District (District) provides wastewater collection and conveyance services to the 
City of Menlo Park, Atherton, and Portola Valley, and areas of East Palo Alto, Woodside and 
unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara counties. The District conveys raw wastewater, via the 
Menlo Park Pump Station and force main, to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) for treatment and 
discharge to the San Francisco Bay.   The District was originally formed in December 1902 as the Menlo 
Park Sanitary District under the Sanitary Sewer Act of 1891.  The District operated as the Menlo Park 
Sanitary District from 1902 until 1981 when its name was changed to the West Bay Sanitary District to 
reflect the service area more accurately.  The powers of the District are established by the State of 
California Health and Safety Code.  The District serves a population of 20,673 households and commercial 
establishments.  The District additionally participates, as a member of the South Bayside Waste 
Management Authority (SBWMA), in the collection and processing of solid waste, recyclable material, 
and organic material.  The District owns and operates the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility 
(SHRWF), through a 2017 long term agreement with Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC) to 
deliver recycled water.  
  
The District issues unaudited financial statements in conformity with the format prescribed by the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards.  This report is an overview of the District’s financial 
activities for the period.  Detailed statement by Fund is included in the Combining Statements and 
included as supplemental data.  Separate statements of revenues and expenditures, which do not 
conform with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) reporting, are also included providing a 
concise statement of operating and non-operating transactions. 

 
 

Table	of	Contents	

Statement of Net Position   3 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Budget v Actual  4 

Collection: General, Capital, & Treatment Plant Funds 

 Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position  5 

 Revenues  6 

 Expenditures  7 

Capital Projects: Capital Fund 10 

Solid Waste Fund 12 

Recycled Water Fund 13 

 Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility 14 

 Bayfront 16 

Reserves 17  

Combining Statements 18 

  

6-5



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 3 

 

 

 

West	Bay	Sanitary	District	
Statement	of	Net	Position	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	

	

 
 

Prior Year Unaudited

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

Assets

Current Assets

Cash & Equivalents 42,165,110 21,580,943                            

Investments 23,638,054 27,293,136                            

Cash & Investments - Restricted 1,517,643 1,519,315

Accounts Receivable 240,232 270,169                                  

Accrued Revenue 443,358

Interest Receivable 442,682 750,762

Prepaid Expenses 77,979 82,039                                    

Total Current Assets 68,081,700 51,939,722

Non-Current Asssets

Investments 19,942,535 38,634,273                            

Restricted Investments 273,634 352,067

Investment in SVCW 29,484,894 27,652,279

Net Pension Asset -                                      

Net OPEB Asset 34,366.0000                    154,944

Capital Assets:

       Property, Plant & Equipment 117,230,095 128,175,811                         

       Accumulated Depreciation (44,812,224) (47,732,536)

       Total Capital Assets 72,417,871 80,443,276

Total Non-Current Assets 122,153,300 147,236,839

Total Assets 190,234,999 199,176,561

Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,659,380 3,569,846                              

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 2,913,390 1,477,905

Accrued Payroll & Taxes 466,570 477,867

Customer Deposits 891,291 775,123

SRF Note Payable 506,732 511,799

Total Current Liabilities 4,777,983 3,242,694

Non-Current Liabilities

OPEB Liability

Net Pension Liability 620,100 1,193,844

SRF Deposit - SHGCC 1,458,404 1,458,404

SRF Note Payable 15,111,188 14,599,389
Total Liabilities 21,967,675 20,494,331

Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,942,351 1,855,551

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 56,799,950 65,332,087

Capital Fund Budget 44,218,570 43,680,280

Investment In SVCW 29,484,894 27,652,279

Operation Reserve 11,111,437 14,024,468

Unrestricted Fund Balance 23,363,779 29,707,411

Total Net Position 164,978,631 180,396,525

Prior Period Adjustment 6,005,723
Total Net Position 170,984,354 180,396,525                         

6-6



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 4 

 

 

 

 
West	Bay	Sanitary	District	

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenses	&	Changes	in	Net	Position	
Budget	verses	Actual	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	

	
 Prior 

Year 
 Unaudited Actual  Approved Budget 

 Budget v 

Actual 

 Budget v 

Actual 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24

 

Operating Revenues

    Sewer Service Charges 30,508,147            32,227,643           32,477,617           249,974                 99%

    Flow Equalization 436,915                 403,165                403,165                -                         100%

    Permit & Inspection Fees 203,036                 447,140                200,000                (247,140)                224%

    Other Operating Revenue 948,343                 949,127                833,686                (115,441)                114%

Operating Revenues 32,096,441             34,027,074             33,914,468             (112,607)                100%

Operating Expenses

    Salaries & Benefits 6,330,473               7,022,123               7,247,613               225,490                 97%

    Materials & Supplies 657,069                 638,382                790,000                151,618                 81%

    Insurance 331,064                  329,736                  327,900                  (1,836)                    101%

    Contract Services 763,708                 726,126                916,400                190,274                 79%

    Professional Services 824,391                 736,059                1,546,800             810,741                 48%

    Repairs & Maintenance 389,911                 495,971                671,100                175,129                 74%

    Utilities 405,452                 480,754                497,250                16,496                   97%

    Other Operating Expenses 286,721                 254,635                527,200                272,565                 48%

    Depreciation 3,518,536              3,821,663             3,955,000             133,337                 97%

     Total WBSD Operating Expenses 13,507,324            14,505,450           16,479,263           1,973,814              88%

     Sewage Treatment Plant (SVCW) 12,846,366            12,984,204           12,990,848           6,644                     100%

     Total Operating Expenses 26,353,690            27,489,654           29,470,111           1,980,457              93%

Operating Income (Loss) 5,742,751               6,537,421               4,444,356               (2,093,064)             147%

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

   Investment Income 1,367,580              3,818,656             501,600                (3,317,056)             761%

   Other Non-Operating Income 1,589,411              1,288,059             (156,179)               (1,444,239)             -825%

   Interest Expense (161,196)                (156,179)               532,475                688,654                 -29%

   Other Non-Operating Expenses (10,951)                  (311,963)               -                        311,963                 

   Increase (Decrease) in SVCW -                         (1,832,615)            -                        1,832,615              

    Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 2,784,843              2,805,959             877,896                (1,928,063)             320%

Change in Net Position before Contributions & Special Items 8,527,594               9,343,379               5,322,252               (4,021,127)             176%

   Increase (Decrease) in Pension (GASB 68) (4,912,677)             (1,489,456)            -                        1,489,456              

Capital Contributions -                        -                         

   Capital Fund: Connection Fees 277,426                  617,021                  250,000                  (367,021)                247%

   Recycled Water Fund 1,146,513              941,226                662,900                (278,326)                142%

Change in Net Position 5,038,855               9,412,171               6,235,152               (3,177,019)             151%

Beginning Net Position 159,939,775           170,984,354           170,984,354           

Prior Period Adjustment 6,005,723               -                          -                          

Ending Net Position 170,984,354           180,396,525           177,219,506           

6-7



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 5 

 

 

 

West	Bay	Sanitary	District	
Collection	

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenses	&	Changes	in	Net	Position	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	

 

 
 

 Collection includes the General, Capital, and Treatment Plant Funds, representing the District’s wastewater services.

6-8



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 6 

 

 

 

Revenues: 

For the year ending June 30, 2024, total combined revenues are $40.7 million including Operating & Non-

Operating Income for the General, Capital, Treatment Plant, Solid Waste, and Recycled Water Funds.    

Collection, which includes the General, Capital, and Treatment Plant Funds, representing the District’s 

core wastewater collection and conveyance services, is explained below.  Solid Waste is detailed on page 

12.  Recycled Water is detailed commencing on page 13. 

Collection: General, Capital, & Treatment Funds: 

General Fund Revenues: 

The General Fund had $33.9 million in Operating Revenue and $2.3 million in Non-Operating Revenue, 

for a combined $36.2 million, 106% of the annual budget. 

o Sewer Service Charges.  Total revenue of $32.2 million for 99% of the annual budget; $26.3 million 

for the 20,433 residential customers and $5.9 million for the 612 non-residential customers. 99.8% 

of all charges are made through the County of San Mateo (SMC) tax roll, with the remaining billed 

manually.  The SMC collects in two installments annually and remits approximately 50% in December 

and April, with smaller reconciling payments during the fiscal year. 

o Permit Fees.  Permit & Inspection Fees of $447 thousand, 224% of the annual budget. 

o Flow Equalization.  The District received $403 thousand on the contract with Silicon Valley Clean 

Water (SVCW) for use of the Flow Equalization Facility Pond in fiscal year 2023-24. 

o Other Operating Income.  A total of $829 thousand was recognized through year end, 115% 

of the annual budget. 

• Revenue for Los Altos Hills’ maintenance service agreement was $537 thousand. 

• Revenue for Town of Woodside’s maintenance service agreement was $101.7 

thousand. 

• An additional $4.1 thousand was from other sources; $240 bid fees, $2,687 in 

CalCard rebates and $1,586 in late fees.  

• Revenue from HACH Contract for private pump station maintenance is billed 

through the SMC tax roll; $186.3 thousand for the fiscal year.  This is a pass-through 

expense, charged to customers in arrears of coverage. 

o Other Non-Operating Revenues:  The District recognized total non-operating revenue of $2.3 

million, representing $2.2 million in interest income and changes in investment market values, 

as required by GAAP and $156 thousand in other non-operating income. 

 
 
 

  

6-9



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 7 

 

 

 

West Bay Sanitary District	
General Fund 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 
 

 

Capital Fund Revenues: 

The Capital Fund recognized $1.4 million in Non-Operating Revenue for interest income, net of gains, 

losses, and investments fees.  The District recognized $19 thousand in net gain from the sale of four fleet 

vehicles.  Connection fees of $617 thousand are recognized as a capital contribution. 

The District was awarded a $4,884,112 million grant to fund a portion of the Ecotone Levee Project, for 

a living shoreline to protect the site from flooding and sea level rise by the National Fish and Wildlife 

Foundation (NFWF).  The funds are matching, requiring a 112% contribution by the District of $5.5 

million.  No funds were received through June 30, 2024.   

Expenditures: 

Through the year ending June 30, 2024, total expenditures were $31.3 million including the General, 

Capital, Treatment Plant, Solid Waste, and Recycled Water Funds.   Collection expenditures are explained 

below and on tables on page 9.  Solid Waste is detailed on page 12.  Recycled Water is detailed 

commencing on page 13. 

Collection: General, Capital, & Treatment Funds: 

Total Collection Operating Expenditures were $26 million, 93% of the annual budget.  Sewer 

Treatment Plant expense and debt, managed by Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), accounts for 57% 

of all wastewater operating expenditures, excluding depreciation. 

General Fund Operating Expenses: 

General Fund Operating Expenses were $9.9 million, 84% of the annual budget.   Expenses are shown 

on the Expense Analysis on the following page, with overhead allocations to the Solid Waste and Recycled 

Water Fund deducted.  

 Prior Year Unaudited Actual Budget Budget v Actual YTD % 

General Fund FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Annual Budget

Revenue

Sewer Service Charges

Residential 25,026,547        26,291,518              26,200,870            90,648                   100%

Non-Residential 5,481,600          5,936,125                 6,276,747              (340,622)               95%

Total Sewer Service Charges 30,508,147        32,227,643              32,477,617            (249,974)               99%

Permit & Inspection Fees 203,036              447,140                    200,000                  247,140                 224%

Flow Equalization 436,915              403,165                    403,165                  -                          100%

Other Operating Income 829,759              829,062                    717,886                  111,177                 115%

Total Operating Revenues 31,977,857        33,907,010              33,798,668            108,342                 100%

Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Income 1,230,231          1,457,993                 500,000                  957,993                 292%

Gain/Loss on Securities (121,064)            590,467                    -                           590,467                 

Gain/Loss on PARS Trust 39,294                73,721                       -                           73,721                   

Gain on Equity in SVCW

Other Non-Op. Inc. 2,720                   156,536                    -                           156,536                 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 1,151,180          2,278,717                 500,000                  2,278,717             456%

Total General Fund Revenue 33,129,038        36,185,727              34,298,668            2,387,059             106%

6-10



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 8 

 

 

 

o Salaries and benefits is 59% of the total General Fund  budget, 3% under budget for the 

fiscal year, with actual expenses at 68% or actual operating expenses.   

o The other expenditures account for 41% of the total budget and 32% of actual 

expenses, with actual expenses averaging 56% of the budget. 

Capital Fund Operating Expenses: 

o Depreciation was $3.1 million, 96% of the annual budget.  The District had $5.7 million 

in completed Construction In Progress (CIP) during fiscal year. 

o $901 thousand in assets were removed due to sales,  disposal, or obsolescence.  A loss 

of $162 thousand was recorded for the net book value of the $389 thousand in assets 

written off.  The four vehicles sold during the fiscal year resulted in a gain of $19 

thousand. 

Treatment Plant Fund Operating Expenses: 

These include $13 million paid for the SVCW treatment plant, which is 100% of the annual budget 

and 57% of total Operating Expenses, excluding depreciation.  The District has a 22.66% share of 

SVCW based on their Unaudited Analysis of Net Position, as of June 30, 2024, valued at $27.65 

million, down from a 22.99% share June 30, 2023.  Expenses are recognized as Sewage Treatment 

Plant under Operating Expenses on the audited financial statements, including debt. The District 

tracks internally in a separate Treatment Plant Fund.  

o SVCW Operating Contributions were $6.1 million, 100% of the annual budget. 

o SVCW Capital & Reserve Contributions were $1.7 million, 100% of the annual budget. 

o SVCW Debt payments were $5.1 million, 100% of the annual budget.   

 

Non-Operating Income (Expenses): 

The District recognized $2.8 million in non-operating revenue and expenses in all Funds.  Collections 

had a net increase of $1.7 million in non-operating revenue and expenses. 

o Net revenue on investments was $3.5 million.  Interest Income of $2.1 million and $1.4 

million gain in the fair market value of investments, less fees, which District plans to hold 

until maturity. 

o Gain on sale of assets was $19 thousand.  

o The District recognized $156.5 thousand in prior year revenue. 

o A loss of $1.8 million was recognized on the Districts investment in SVCW. 

o There was a net $1.5 million pension adjustment expense recognized per GASB 68. 

 

Change in Net Position: 

Collection: General, Capital, and Treatment Plant Funds had a combined $8.78 million increase in Net 

Position for the fiscal year, including $7.9 million in Operating Income.  

The District reports separately the Solid Waste Fund and Recycled Water Fund.  The total increase in Net 

Position for the District was $9.4 million.  The total Net Position was $180.4 million as of June 30, 2024.  

Details of all Funds are included on the Combining Statement on page 18.  

6-11



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 9 

 

 

 

West Bay Sanitary District 
Collection Expenditures	

Fiscal Year 2023-24 
	

General	Fund	

 
 

Treatment	Plant	Fund	

 
 

Prior Year Unaudited Actual Budget Budget v Actual YTD %

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Annual Budget

Salaries & Wages 4,372,141               4,900,964 4,917,723            16,759                  100%

Employee Benefits 1,620,422               1,817,237 2,029,090            211,853                90%

Directors- Fees 39,390                     46,540 45,800                  (740)                      102%

Election Expense 2,524                       -                             -                         

Gasoline, Oil & Fuel 129,566                   90,337 128,000                37,663                  71%

Insurance 236,993                   277,914 287,900                9,986                    97%

Memberships 64,666                     49,007 88,000                  38,993                  56%

Office Expense 37,113                     36,856 48,700                  11,844                  76%

Operating Supplies 386,759                   403,713 462,700                58,987                  87%

Contract Services 713,937                   619,781 849,300                229,519                73%

Professional Services 742,071                   649,707 1,364,900            715,193                48%

Printing & Publications 28,247                     38,529 77,200                  38,671                  50%

Rents & Leases 43,871                     49,004 67,100                  18,096                  73%

Repairs & Maintenance 355,518                   474,360 646,100                171,740                73%

Research & Monitoring -                            -                           27,600                  27,600                  

Training, Meetings & Travel 69,301                     74,496 145,300                70,804                  51%

Utilities 233,645                   249,844 288,000                38,156                  87%

 LAFCo                       22,323 37,100                37,100                  

Other Operating Expenses 136,732                   80,646 244,300                163,654                33%

Equipment Expense 78,331                     91,639 112,400                20,761                  82%

OPEB Expense 25,000                     51,790 25,000                  (26,790)                207%

 Admin:  Solid Waste (59,490)                 (62,600)                (62,600)              0                             100%

 Admin:  Recycled Water                     (19,452) (26,733)                (21,525)              5,208                    124%

     General Fund Operating Expenses 9,309,608               9,913,031              11,808,088          1,895,057            84%

Other Adjustments

   Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) 4,962,677               1,489,456              50,000                  (1,439,456)          

   Prior Period Adjustments (6,005,723)             -                             -                          

Total General Fund Expenses 8,266,562               11,402,487            11,858,088          455,601                96%

 Unaudited Actual Unaudited Actual Budget Budget v Actual YTD %

 Treatment Plant Fund FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Annual Budget

SVCW - Operating Fund 6,027,936               6,117,648 6,117,648            -                         100%

 SVCW - Operating Reserve 22,908                   48,576 48,576                -                         100%

SVCW - Capital Contributions 1,047,840               128,832 128,832                -                         100%

SVCW:  Line of Credit 51,936 51,936                  -                         

SVCW: Capital Reserves 805,200 805,200                -                         100%

 SVCW - 2018 Bond  1,833,999             1,836,301 1,837,963          1,662                    100%

SVCW - 2021 Bonds ($55.6m) 2,736,917               2,728,946 2,731,306            2,360                    100%

SVCW - SRF WWTP Debt C-06-5216-120 506,765                   506,765 506,765                (0)                           100%

SVCW: Debt Reserves 670,000 760,000 762,622                2,622                    100%

     Total Treatment Plant Fund Operating Expenses 12,846,366 12,984,204 12,990,848          6,644                    100%

Non-Operating Expenses

Loss on Investment SVCW 1,832,615 (1,832,615)          

     Total Treatment Plant Fund Expenses 12,846,366 14,816,819 12,990,848 (1,825,971)          114%

6-12



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 10 

 

 

 

Capital Assets:  
For year ending June 30, 2024, total Capital expenditures were $10.9 million, 24% of the total annual 

budget; $9.5 million for the Capital Fund, with $1.1 million sold or otherwise removed from operations, 

and $2.6 million for the Recycled Water Fund.   A detailed schedule of Capital Fund Expenditures is included 

on page 11.  The Recycled Water Fund expenditures are shown separately beginning on page 13. 

 

West Bay Sanitary District	
Capital Expenditures 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 
 

Capital Fund Assets: 

Capital Fund had net capital expenditures of $9.5 million, 40% of the $23.9 million annual budget, in addition 
to $1.1 million in assets were removed from operations, including sales of four retired vehicles and salvage 
or one vehicle for $73.5 thousand, with original costs of $596 thousand for a net gain of $8 thousand.   

 Vehicle & Equipment.   

o A mini excavator was purchased for $57,452, 96% of the approved budget. 

o An E-Transit Van was purchased for $62,798, which was not on original budget. 

o Four vehicles were sold a one salvaged with original costs of $561,526. 

 Subsurface Lines and Other.   

o Pump Station costs were $47,715, just 11% of the annual budget.  The telemetry 

project, with a $400 thousand budget, is not complete. 

o Moved Meta contribution for upsize of recycled water lines to Recycled Water Fund. 

 Construction in Progress (CIP).  These are new or continuing constructions projects that are 

recorded separately and capitalized when completed.  CIP is not depreciated until completed  

o Levee Project.  $5.1 million was expended for levee, 51% of budget.   

o Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Design.  $437 thousand was expended, 31% of budget. 

o Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Construction.  $4 million was expended, 38% of budget. 

o The Gilbert, North Bay, Ringwood project for $5.7 million, initiated in 2020, was 

completed with the final retention distribution of $265 thousand in October 2023.   

Prior Year Actual Budget Variance YTD %

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Budget Balance Annual Budget

Capital Fund 

Administration -                          -                          173,000                 724,353                 -319%

Collection Facilities 15,722                   -                          600,000                 600,000                 0%

Fleet & Equipment 978,603                 120,249                 445,000                 324,751                 27%

Pump Stations 109,991                 47,715                   440,000                 392,285                 11%

Subsurface Lines 337,741                 (337,741)               100,000                 437,741                 -338%

Construction Projects 2,939,177             9,644,890             22,155,000           12,510,110           44%

Total Capital Fund 4,381,234             9,475,114             23,913,000           14,437,886           40%

Disposal: Vehicles & Equpment (57,885)                 (561,526)               -                          561,526                 

Write-Off: Assets (61,991)                 (551,353)               -                          551,353                 

Net Captial Fund 4,261,358             8,362,235             23,913,000           15,550,765           35%

Recycled Water Fund

Recycled Water - Sharon Heights RWF 316,121                 881,237                 2,450,000             1,568,763             36%

Recycled Water - Bayfront RWF 169,525                 1,336,929             17,299,485           15,962,556           8%

O'Brian Reclaimed Water Pipelines 61,348                   2,500,000             2,438,652             2%

Meta Reclaimed Water Pipelines -                          303,967                 -                          (303,967)               

Total Recycled Water Fund 485,647                 2,583,481             22,249,485           19,666,004           12%

Total Capital Expenditures 4,866,881             10,945,717           46,162,485           35,216,768           24%

6-13



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 11 

 

 

 

West Bay Sanitary District 
Capital Expenditures 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 
 

Actual Actual Budget Variance YTD %

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Budget Balance Annual Budget

Plant & Administration

Server Replacement Program 23,000                   23,000                   0%

Software Purchases 150,000                 150,000                 0%

Write-Off: Assets (23,763)                 (385,027)               

Total Administration (23,763)                 (385,027)               173,000                 558,027                 -223%

Collection Facilities - FERRF/Buildings

FERRF Improvements -                          -                          500,000                 500,000                 0%

Metal Storage Building - Phase 1 & 2 15,722                   -                          -                          -                          

Allowance For Unanticipated Capital Expenditures -                        -                        100,000               100,000                0%

Write-Off: Assets (49,012)                 

Total Collection Facilities 15,722                   (49,012)                 600,000                 600,000                 -8%

Equipment Replacement - Funded From The Equipment Replacement Fund

Equipment

CCTV Transporter & Track Module 20,575                   -                          -                          

Vehicles

Dump Truck (Deferred since 2020) 250,000                 250,000                 0%

Source Control - Ford F250 Lightning EV (Replace Unit 64,643                   -                          -                          

Replace Unit 211: F150 Lightning EV 70,509                   -                          

F150 Lightning EV (2) 64,643                   135,000                 135,000                 0%

Jet Truck, Superduty F550 4x4, 1/2in Jetter - Unit 228 139,838                 -                          -                          

Combo Vacuum/Jetter Truck - Unit 229 (Replace Unit 2 562,690                 -                          -                          

2022 Ford Mach E - GM Vehicle Unit 230 55,706                   -                          -                          

Mini Excavator 57,452                   60,000                   2,548                     96%

2023 Ford E-Transit Van 6/2024 62,798                   

Total Vehicle & Equipment Purchases 978,603                 120,249                 445,000                 324,751                 27%

Destroyed Vehicle (34,635)                 -                          

Sold Vehicles (561,526)               

Write-Off Prior Period Disposable Parts (23,250)                 -                          

Total Vehicle & Equipment 920,718                 (441,276)               445,000                 324,751                 -99%

Subsurface Lines and Other 

Pump Stations

Pump & Valve Replacement Program 109,991                 2,200                     40,000                   37,800                   6%

Pump Station Telemetry 45,515                   400,000                 354,485                 11%

Write-Off: Assets (117,315)               

Total Pump Stations 109,991                 (69,600)                 440,000                 392,285                 -16%

Other Subsurface Lines

Manhole Raising (Paving Projects) 100,000                 100,000                 0%

Meta:  MP Community Center Upsize RW Svc Line 337,741                 (337,741)               337,741                 

Completed CIP:  North Bay / Ringwood / Gilbert 5,702,932             (5,702,932)           

Total Subsurface Lines 337,741                 5,365,192             100,000                 (5,265,192)           5365%

Construction In Progress

Levee Survey & GPS Update -                          60,000                   60,000                   0%

Sheet Piling Project -                          -                          

Levee Improvement 581,162                 -                          3,000,000             3,000,000              

Levee Improvement Project (Carryover) 5,148,214             7,000,000             1,851,786             51%

Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Engineering

Corporate Yard Renovation Design (Carryover) 350,000                 350,000                 0%

Construction Projects Environmental Review 20,000                   20,000                   0%

Spot Repair Design-High Frequency List -                    -                          

Spot Repair Design-High Frequency List (Carryover) 350,000                 350,000                 0%

Pipeline Replacement Design -                          -                          

Pipeline Replacement Design (Carryover) 128,350                 350,000                 221,650                 37%

Stowe Lane Design (Carryover) 179,650                 200,000                 20,350                   90%

Willow Pump Station Rehabilitation Design 153,723                 200,000                 46,278                   77%

Pipeline Replacement & Rehab Construction

Stowe Lane -                          3,000,000             3,000,000             0%

Willow Pump Station Rehabilitation 1,000,000             1,000,000             0%

Willow Pump Station Rehabilitation (Carryover) 700,000                 700,000                 0%

Misc Point Repairs-High Freq. List Repairs 352,337                 1,818,144             2,703,200             885,056                 67%

Misc Point Repairs-High Freq. List Repairs (Carryover) 1,621,800             1,621,800             -                          100%

Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvements 144,709                 549,485                 549,485                 0%

Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvements (Carryover) 595,010                 1,050,515             455,504                 57%

Write-off CIP (38,228)                 

Total Construction In Progress 2,900,950             9,644,890             22,155,000           12,510,110           44%

Completed Projects:

North Bay / Ringwood / Gilbert (5,702,932)           5,702,932             

Net Construction In Progress 2,900,950             3,941,958             22,155,000           18,213,042           18%

Total Capital Expenditures 4,319,243             8,923,761             23,913,000           14,822,913           37%

Other Capital Adjustments (119,876)               (561,526)               -                          561,526                 

Net Capital Expenditures 4,199,367             8,362,235             23,913,000           15,550,765           35%

6-14



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 12 

 

 

 

Solid Waste Fund: 

The District is a member of South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), a joint powers 

authority which contracts with Recology to provide recycling, compost, and garbage collection services.  

The Solid Waste Fund had a net increase of $343 thousand, to a Net Position of $899 thousand, as of 

June 30, 2024. 

o Solid Waste Fund Revenue.  Franchise fees were $120 thousand, 104% of the annual budget.  

This represents 6% of the Net Revenue of Recology; 5% in Franchise Fees and 1% from Rate 

Stabilization Fund.  

o Solid Waste Fund Expense.  Allocated expenses for the Solid Waste program of $94.5 

thousand were recognized for rate studies, annual notification and public hearing mailings, 

and overhead allocation, 83% of the annual budget.    

o Solid Waste Fund Non-Operating Income & Expense.  A surplus of $317.8 thousand from 
2022 was received in January 2024. 

Solid	Waste	Fund	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24 

 

 
  

 

 

 Prior Year Actual  Approved Budget  Budget v Actual  YTD % 

 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Annual Budget

Income

Operating Income

Franchise Fees 91,729 96,983 115,800 (18,817)  

Rate Stabilization Fund 18,346 19,397 19,397

Curbside Supplimental 4,310 3,684 3,684

Total Income 118,584 120,064 115,800 4,264 104%
 

Expenditures

Allocated Operating Expense

Rate Studies 20,891 28,314 44,200 (15,886) 64%

Mailings 2,076 3,600 5,300 (1,700) 68%

Public Relations 0 0 1,600 (1,600) 0%

Overhead Expense Allocation 59,490 62,600 62,600 0 100%

Total Allocated Operating Expense 82,457 94,514 113,700 (19,186) 83%

Non-Operating Income & Expenditures

 Surplus 0 317,824 0 317,824

Total Non-Operating Income & Expenditu 0 317,824 0 317,824

Change in Net Position 36,127                      343,375                    2,100                           341,275                      16351%

Beginning Balance 519,319                    555,446                    555,446                      

Ending Balance 555,446                    898,820                    557,546                      

$163.90 $165.15 $164.75 $163.39 $165.59 $165.47 
$176.90 $177.77 $177.79 $177.90 $180.20 $177.25 

$9.28 $9.35 $9.33 $9.33 $9.30 $9.37 $10.01 $10.06 $10.06 $10.07 $10.20 $13.72 
 -

 20
 40
 60
 80

 100
 120
 140
 160
 180
 200

7/2023 8/2023 9/2023 10/2023 11/2023 12/2023 1/2024 2/2024 3/2024 4/2024 5/2024 6/2024

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s

Franchise Revenue

Franchise Fee Rate Stabalization Fund Curbside Recycling (CalRecycle) Net Revenue (Gross/(1+6%) Gross Billings Total Solid Waste Revenue

6-15



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 13 

 

 

 

Recycled Water Fund:  

The Recycled Water Fund includes the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility (SHRWF) and the Bayfront 

Recycled Water Facility (BFRWF) project.   SHRWF is a public/private partnership with Sharon Heights Golf 

& Country Club (SHGCC) to deliver recycled water.  Details follow on page 14-16.   

 

The District maintains separate reporting for each recycled water project, including any expenses or 

income not associated with an individual project.  This allows for accountability and transparency to all 

District stakeholders.   WBSD column accounts for unallocated income and expenses. 

West	Bay	Sanitary	District	
Recycled	Water	Fund	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24 

 

 
 

Each recycled water project is maintained separately withing the Recycled Water Fund. 

 Sharron Heights Recycled Water Facility.  The final project was capitalized for $22,780,298 in 

fiscal year 2020-21.  In FY 2022-23, two supporting projects were started, with the solar project 

deferred in FY 2022-23 and Avy Altschul Pump Station scheduled for completion in FY 2023-24. 

 Bayfront Recycled Water Facility.  The District completed an initial BFRWF Plan in February 2019, 

with Board approval on May 12, 2021, completion is scheduled for 2027. Details on page 16.    

 Other Recycled Water Projects.  Separate expenditures by the District and in partnership with 

customers to install recycled water subsurface lines for shared public use.   

 
Recycled	Water	Fund	
Capital	Expenditures	

 

 

 
  

Recycled Water Fund WBSD SHRWF BFRWF Total

Salaries & Benefits -                       (204,225)            (1,367)                 (205,592)            

Other Operating Expense -                       (408,911)            (61,739)              (470,650)            

Depreciation -                       (754,902)            -                       (754,902)            

Operating Income (Expense) -                       (1,368,038)        (63,106)              (1,431,144)        

Non-Operating Income 438,220              646,387              -                       1,084,607          

Non-Operating Expense (150,000)            (156,179)            -                       (306,179)            

Capital Contributions -                       596,620              344,606              941,226              

Net Change in Position 288,220              (281,211)            281,500              288,510              

Actual Actual Budget Variance YTD %

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Budget Balance Annual Budget

Recycled Water Fund

Sharon Heights RWF - Avy Pump Station 316,121                 881,237                 950,000                 68,763                   93%

Sharon Heights RWF - Solar Project Lease -                          -                          1,500,000             1,500,000             0%

Bayfront Recycled Water Facility - Project Mgmt 88,312                   -                          1,000,000             1,000,000             0%

Bayfront Recycled Water Facility 741,919                 15,750,000           15,008,081           5%

Bayfront - Reclaimed Water Pipelines 81,214                   595,010                 549,485                 (45,525)                 108%

O'Brian Reclaimed Water Pipelines 61,348                   2,500,000             2,438,652             2%

Meta Reclaimed Water Pipelines 303,967                 -                          (303,967)               

Total Recycled Water 485,647                 2,583,481             22,249,485           19,666,004           12%

6-16



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 14 

 

 

 

 Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility  
The Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility (SHRWF) project was completed in FY 2020-21 and accepted 

effective July 27, 2020, for a total of $22,647,052 to build the 0.5 MGD plant.  $22,267,257 was received 

from the California Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF), including a $5,259,800 Water Recycling Funding 

Program Construction Grant and a net SRF Loan of $17,117,420.  The first SRF loan payment was made in 

March 2021, with annual payments thereafter.  The SRF loan balance is $15,111,188, as of March 31, 

2024, with the next payment due March 31, 2025. 

 

The District has worked with SHGCC on a Solar Project, to install solar panels for the SHRWF, to reduce 

energy costs.  SHGCC was working with a leasing company, who would retain ownership.  All costs 

incurred by the District are passed along to SHGCC.   

 

The District installed another pump station to feed the SHRWF.  The Avy Altschul Pump Station (Avy PS) 

is funded by SHGCC through a combination of SRF loan, grant funds, and direct contributions.  SHGCC 

will reimburse the District for all costs, including SRF loan payments. 

 

The District assumed full management of the SHRWF beginning January 27, 2021.  Operation & 

Maintenance (O&M) expenses are paid by the District.  Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC) 

pays an estimated calendar year budget in monthly installments, which is reconciled annually.  Detailed 

statements is on page 15. 

o Operating Expense.   

• Total expenditures were $1.4 million, including depreciation of the facility. 

• Operating Expenses were $613 thousand, 115% of the annual budget. 

• Depreciation Expense was $755 thousand, 100% of the annual budget. 

o Non-Operating Income & Expenses.   

• Non-Operation Income from SHGCC of $644.7 thousand was recognized from 

SHGCC.  This represents estimated billing for O&M and the calendar year 2023 O&M 

reconciliation.   

• Interest Income was $1,673. 

• Interest Expense was $156,179 for the annual SRF Loan payment of $662,911. 

o Capital Contributions 

• SHGCC makes ten equal payments each year to prepay the SRF loan, with a 

reconciliation after the calendar yearend.  The payments begin each April for the 

March SRF loan payment in the following year.  The payments are considered 

contributions as received. SHGCC prepaid one installment June 2023, resulting in 

nine payments in FY 2023-24. 

  

 
 
 
 
  

6-17



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 15 

 

 

 

West	Bay	Sanitary	District	
Recycled	Water	Fund	

Sharron	Heights	Recycled	Water	Facility	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	

 

 
  

Actual Actual Approved Budget Budget v Actual YTD %

Expenditures FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Annual Budget

Operating Expense

 District Wages

Plant Operator 122,305 101,878 85,000                         16,878                         119.9%

Indirect Labor 13,544 5,740 -                                5,740                           

Overtime 26,317 20,021 20,000                         21                                 100.1%

Standby 20,170 19,380 20,000                         (620)                             96.9%

Total District Wages 182,336 147,020 125,000                       22,020                         117.6%

 Employee Benefits 41,184 57,205 35,000                         22,205                         163.4%

 Total Salaries, Wages & Benefits 223,520 204,225 160,000                       44,225                         127.6%

Other Operating Expense

 Gasoline, Oil & Fuel 347 46 -                                46                                 

Insurance 33,241 51,823 40,000                         11,823                         129.6%

 Memberships 0 0 -                                -                                

Office Expense 0 0 -                                -                                

 Operating Supplies 24,626 15,791 38,200                         (22,409)                       41.3%

Contractual Services 5,900 13,914 -                                13,914                         

 Professional Services 25,064 21,168 11,000                         10,168                         192.4%

Printing & Publications 0 0 -                                -                                

 Rents & Leases 0 0 -                                -                                

Repairs & Maintenance 34,393 21,612 25,000                         (3,388)                          86.4%

 Research & Monitoring 22,664 21,727 15,000                         6,727                           144.8%

Training, Meetings & Travel 0 0 -                                -                                

 Utilities 171,807 230,910 209,250                       21,660                         0.0%

Licenses & Permits 21,681 5,187 12,500                         (7,313)                          0.0%

Other Operating Expenses 0 0 -                                -                                

 Operations & Maintenance (Contract) 0 0 -                                -                                

Administrative Expense 19,452 26,733 21,525                         5,208                           3507.1%

Subtotal Operation & Maintenance 582,695 613,137 532,475 80,662 256.9%

Depreciation 752,805 754,902 755,000                       (98)                                100.0%

 Total Operating Expense 1,335,500 1,368,038 1,287,475 80,563 106.3%

Non-Operating Income & Expense 

Non-Operating Income

Sharon Heights Golf & County Club 530,040 644,714 532,475 112,239 0.0%

Interest Income 1,668 1,673 1,600 73 104.5%

Gain/Loss on Reserves 0 0 0 0

Other Non-Operating Income 0 0 0

Total Non-Operating Income 531,708 646,387 534,075 112,312 121.0%

Non-Operating Expense

Interest Expense (SRF Loan) (161,196) (156,179)                     (156,179)                     (0)                                  100.0%

Total Non-Operating Expense (161,196) (156,179)                     (156,179) (0) 100.0%

Total Non-Operating Income & Expense 370,512 490,208                       377,896 112,312 129.7%

Capital Contributions

Grant -                                -                                -                                

SRF Loan Payment 662,911                       596,620                                              662,900                         (66,280) 90.0%

SRF Loan Payment Advances 265,164                       -                                                                   -                                       -   

Avy Pump Station Contributions 218,437                       -                                                                   -                                       -   

Total Capital Contributions 1,146,513 596,620                       662,900 (66,280) 90.0%

Net Change in Position 181,524 (281,211)                     (246,679) (34,532) 114.0%

6-18



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 16 

 

 

 

Recycled Water: 

Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BFRWF)  

The District completed an initial BFRWF Plan in February 2019.  After completing required Environmental 

Impact Report (EIR) and other regulatory requirements, on May 12, 2021, the District Board approved 

the project to build a 0.6 million gallons per day (MGD) recycled water facility at the District’s Flow 

Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility (FERRF) site.  The District is expanding the facility from 

0.6MGD to 1MGD, to address expected customer demand.   Construction completion is scheduled for 

2027. BFRWF will be a public project with contributions in aid of construction from several developers, 

for a guaranteed share of capacity, with the District maintaining extra capacity to offer to prospective 

customers.  

In FY 2023-24 the BFRWF project had $63 thousand in expenditures for allocated costs and professional 

services working towards receiving grant funding, permits, and other implementation costs. 

BFRWF had $1.3 million in capital expenditures in FY 2023-24, for total project Construction in Progress 

(CIP) expenditures of $2.2 million.  The current projected construction budget is $88 million. 

The District was originally awarded a $14.7 million grant from the California State Water Recycling 

Funding Program (WRFP), with a $41.9 million SRF loan.  Due to state budget deficits the grant was 

recently reduced to $5 million and the SRF loan increased to $66.6 million.  The state has indicated 

potentially  $3 million in additional grants.  The District has contributed the land and additional funding, 

with other partners contributing for guaranteed recycled water delivery.  Meta has contributed 43.3% 

of initial project management, for a potential 0.26MGD allowance of output.  The District is working with 

Meta on a long-term agreement. 

 
Recycled Water Fund represents 20.3% of all District assets, including SHRWF and Bayfront CIP. 

 
  

6-19



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 17 

 

 

 

Reserves: 
The District budgeted $3.3 million in total reserve contributions for FY 2023-24.  An additional $2.9 million 

is allocated to the Operating Reserve and $401.6 thousand for the Vehicle & Equipment Reserve.  On 

January 10, 2024 the Board approved transferring $20 million to short-term investments to provide 

additional yield until funds were needed for capital projects.   

 Reserves. The District originally budgeted $3.3 million for unrestricted reserve contributions. 

o Operating Reserve:  The Operating Reserve, which is held in Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF), is budgeted for six months of operations to provide cash flow from the 

beginning of the year until funds are received from San Mateo County for the tax roll. 

o Rate Stabilization Reserve:  Was created in 2015 to provide relief if large rate increases 

were necessary. 

o Treatment Plant Reserve:  Was created in 2021 to set aside funds for future large debt 

requirements from SVCW. 

o Capital Reserves:  The Emergency Capital Reserve was created in 2010, with the Capital 

Project Reserve following in 2014.  $20 million in funds was transferred in January 2024 

from LAIF to the Capital Project Reserve to increase yields until funds are needed for 

capital projects. 

o Recycled Water Reserves:  The Recycled Water Cash Flow Reserve, which was initially 

created for the SHRWF in 2018 to cover expenditures which were reimbursed through a 

State of California State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan, is continuing to serve for the BFRWF 

Project.  Some funds are held in LAIF to fund the Bayfront project, until its SRF loan is 

approved and other funding is received.   

 Restricted Reserves.   

o The Recycled Water SRF Reserve are funds deposited by SHGCC, as required by the SRF 

loan agreement.   

o The District has two accounts with Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) for post-

employment benefits trusts.  $75 thousand was transferred to PARS in December 2023. 
 

 

Reserve Actual Approved Budget Variance YTD %

Reserve Transfers Target FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Budget Balance Annual 

Contributions To Reserves

Operating Reserves Transfers (Target 6mo/Ops) 17,245,253           2,913,031             2,913,031                  -                         100%

Rate Stabilization 10,000,000           -                         -                              -                         

Treatment Plant Reserve 12,000,000           -                         -                              -                         

Capital Reserves

Capital  Project Reserves Transfers 8,000,000             20,000,000           -                              (20,000,000)         

Emergency Capital  Reserves Transfer 6,000,000             -                         -                              -                         

Vehicle & Equip Replacement Reserve 1,000,000             401,577                401,577                     -                         100%

Recycled Water Reserves

Recycled Water Facility Cash Flow Reserve 8,000,000             -                         -                              -                         

Recycled Water SRF Reserve - Restricted -                              -                         

  Reserve Transfers 62,245,253           23,314,608           3,314,608                  (20,000,000)         703%

Other Reserve Contributions

PARS Irrevocable Trust - Retirement 50,000                   50,000                        -                         100%

PARS Irrevocable Trust - OPEB 25,000                   25,000                        -                         100%

Self-Insurance Reserve 73,300                   73,300                        -                         100%

  Total Contributions To Reserves 23,462,908           3,462,908                  (20,000,000)         678%

6-20



W e s t  B a y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t  –  F i n a n c i a l  R e p o r t     P a g e  | 18 

 

 

 

West	Bay	Sanitary	District	
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenses	&	Changes	in	Net	Position	

Combining	Statements	by	Fund	
Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	

	

 

 General Fund  Capital Fund  Treatment Plant Fund  Solid Waste Fund 
 Recycled Water 

Fund 

 Unaudited 

Actual 

FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24

 

Operating Revenues

    Sewer Service Charges 32,227,643               -                          -                              -                          -                            32,227,643              

    Flow Equalization 403,165                    -                          -                              -                          -                            403,165                   

    Permit & Inspection Fees 447,140                    -                          -                              -                          -                            447,140                   

    Other Operating Revenue 829,062                    -                          -                              120,064                  -                            949,127                   

Operating Revenues 33,907,010               -                            -                                120,064                    -                            34,027,074               

Operating Expenses

    Salaries & Benefits 6,816,531                 -                            -                                -                            205,592                    7,022,123                 

    Materials & Supplies 622,545                    -                          -                              -                          15,837                      638,382                   

    Insurance 277,914                    -                            -                                -                            51,823                      329,736                    

    Contract Services 668,785                    -                          -                              -                          57,341                      726,126                   

    Professional Services 649,707                    -                          -                              28,314                    58,038                      736,059                   

    Repairs & Maintenance 474,360                    -                          -                              -                          21,612                      495,971                   

    Utilities 249,844                    -                          -                              -                          230,910                    480,754                   

    Other Operating Expenses 153,344                    -                          -                              66,200                    35,090                      254,635                   

    Depreciation -                            3,066,761               -                              -                          754,902                    3,821,663                

     Total WBSD Operating Expenses 9,913,031                 3,066,761               -                              94,514                    1,431,144                 14,505,450              

     Sewage Treatment Plant (SVCW) 12,984,204                  12,984,204              

     Total Operating Expenses 9,913,031                 3,066,761               12,984,204                  94,514                    1,431,144                 27,489,654              

Operating Income (Loss) 23,993,979               (3,066,761)                (12,984,204)                  25,551                      (1,431,144)                6,537,421                 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

   Investment Income 2,122,181                 1,406,583               289,893                    3,818,656                

   Other Non-Operating Income 156,536                    18,985 -                              317,824                  794,714                    1,288,059                

   Interest Expense (156,179)                   (156,179)                  

   Other Non-Operating Expenses (161,963)                 (150,000)                   (311,963)                  

   Increase (Decrease) in SVCW (1,832,615)                  (1,832,615)               

    Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 2,278,717                 1,263,606               (1,832,615)                  317,824                  778,428                    2,805,959                

Change in Net Position by Fund 26,272,696               (1,803,156)              (14,816,819)                343,375                  (652,717)                   9,343,379                

Pension Adjustment (GASB 68) (1,489,456)                (1,489,456)               

Capital Contributions

   Interfund Contributions (32,921,515)              19,937,311             12,984,204                  -                          -                            (0)                             

   Capital Fund: Connection Fees -                            617,021                    617,021                    

   Recycled Water Fund -                            -                            -                                -                            941,226                    941,226                    

Change in Net Position (8,138,275)                18,751,176               (1,832,615)                    343,375                    288,510                    9,412,171                 

Beginning Net Position 51,479,171               76,198,905               29,484,894                    555,446                    13,265,938               170,984,354             

Prior Period Adjustment -                            -                            -                            

Ending Net Position 43,340,897               94,950,081               27,652,279                    898,820                    13,554,447               180,396,525             

6-21



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 
Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

 

        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 7 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report and Discussion from the Finance Committee 
 
The Finance Committee will report on the Finance Committee meeting held on November 
19, 2024.  
 

7-1



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 
Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 8 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights 

Recycled Water Facility 
 
A discussion will be held on the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility and other events 
related to the recycled water plant. The Board will have the opportunity to provide 
direction to staff and legal counsel.  
 
 

Recycled Water Facility Production Data: 
 

2024  Processed  Delivered 

January   5.8MG  175K gallons 

February   5.6MG  464K 

March  6.5MG  1.5MG 

April  8.1MG  4.4MG 

May   10.6MG  9.3MG 

June  10.7MG  9.9MG 

July  11.3MG  9.9MG 

August  10.7MG  9.3MG 

September  7.8MG  7MG 

October  8.8MG  5.4MG 

 
2023  Processed  Delivered 

January   5MG  0 gallons 

February  3.3MG  0 gallons 

March  3.5MG  0 gallons 

April   4.9MG  32k gals. Dust Control 

May   5.1MG  432k gals. Dust Control 

June   4.8MG  456k gals. Dust Control 

July  6.2MG  1.05MG Dust Control 

August   8.1MG 
2.7MG 

(+ 1.5 MG  Dust Control) 

September   8.4MG 
4MG 

(+ 1.04 MG  Dust Control) 

October  9.6MG  7.4MG 

8-1



 
Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

November  7.7MG  3.7MG 

December  7.4MG  970K 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2022  Processed  Delivered 

January   4.4MG  97,000 gallons 

February  4.4MG  1.5MG 

March  6.6MG  3.5MG 

April   7.6MG  3.8MG 

May   9.2MG  7.4MG 

June  9.8MG  8.7MG 

July  9.6MG  8.1MG 

August   9.2MG  8.1MG 

September   8.6MG  6.7MG 

October  7.9MG  4.6MG 

November   5.9MG  310,000 gallons 

December   5.4MG  154,690 gallons 

 
2021  Total Processed  Total Delivered 

Yearly Total  88.2MG  56.26MG (*) (**) 

     

2020  Total Processed  Total Delivered 

August‐Dec.  34.1MG  19.75MG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
*  Sharon Heights substantially tapered off their water usage for September which is the reason 
for the large discrepancy between treated and delivered. 
** Treatment was reduced in the second half of the month. Rain in late October and an irrigation 
equipment malfunctions caused water delivery to decrease.  
 
The following is a disclosure statement required for any document, written report or brochure 
prepared in whole or in part pursuant to the Finance Agreement with the State Water Resources 
Control Board for the West Bay Sanitary District Recycled Water Project - Sharon Heights:  
Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State 
Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized 
through a variety of funding sources, including grants from the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency and state bond proceeds. The contents of this document do not necessarily 
reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does mention of trade names or commercial 
products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use. 

8-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Project 

and Status Update 
 
A discussion will be held on the District’s Bayfront Recycled Water Projects and other 
events related to the recycled water projects including financing, environmental review, 
design/build issues and grant applications.  
 
The Board will have the opportunity to provide direction to staff and general counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

 

9-1



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



            WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 10 

 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside Waste 

Management Authority (SBWMA) including the Solid Waste 
Franchise Re-Assignment 

 
The District’s representative to South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), 
President Fran Dehn, will report on any pertinent items regarding SBWMA business. 
General Manager Ramirez will report and seek direction on the solid waste franchise re-
assignment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 

10-1



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 AGENDA ITEM 11 

 
 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) 

Plant 
 
The District’s representative to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), Commissioner 
George Otte, will report on pertinent items regarding SVCW Operations, CIP and 
Finance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Special Meeting of December 4, 2024 
 

11-1



TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   


	Agenda Dec. 4, 2024
	3A - Minutes Nov. 13, 2024
	3B - Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No.1616 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities at 104 Constitutional Drive (Menlo Portal,old addresses 110 Constitution Drive and 115 IndependenceDrive), Menlo Park, California
	3C - Consider Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permits No. 1617 and 1619 for the SewerImprovements for Menlo Uptown at 141 Jefferson Drive and 180& 186 Constitution Drive, Menlo Park, California
	3D - Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Issue Class 3 Permit 24-198 for 6-inch Sewer Main Replacement at 811 BayRoad, Menlo Park, California
	3E - Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 24-198 for Proposed Sewer Easementfor 811 Bay Road, Menlo Park, California
	3F - Consider Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement Pursuant to Class 5 Sewer Permit No. 18033 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for 35 Possum Lane, Portola Valley,California
	3G - Consider Accepting Wastewater Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 18032 for theConstruction of Force Main Extension, and Class 5 Permit No.18033 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 35Possum Lane, Portola Valley, California
	4 - General Manager’s Report
	5 - Consider Approving Resolution Adopting FY 2024-25 Budget
	6 - Consider Approving FY 2023-24 Financial Statements, Ending June 30, 2024
	7 - Report and Discussion from the Finance Committee
	8 - Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility
	9 - Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update
	10 - Report, Discussion, and Direction on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) including the Solid WasteFranchise Re-Assignment
	11 - Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Plant



